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INTRODUCTION

ORIGINS

The modern town of Woking in Surrey did not exist before the 1850s. When,
in May 1838, the London to Southampton railway first opened, early
passengers would have looked out of the train windows upon wide stretches
of heathland. The railway station, originally named Woking Common, was
built on the southern side of the line to serve the coaches from Guildford
and Ripley which brought and collected the mail.

The Necropolis

In 1850, London had a problem; its ever growing population was filling all of
the church graveyards. This had repercussions in terms of both the sanctity
of grave sites and contamination of water supplies with subsequent hazards
to health.

The London Necropolis and National Mausoleum Company was formed and
proposed a solution. A huge cemetery would be built some distance from
London, where everybody (and every body) in the capital, and eventually the
country would be buried.

An Act of Parliament was passed which authorised the purchase of common
land within the parish of the village of Woking (now Old Woking). The plan
drew considerable criticism. Many thought that the 2,600 acres authorised
to be purchased was far in excess of what would be needed and that the
whole scheme was no more than land speculation.!

A cemetery of 400 acres was set
out, as a first phase (in that

In Parliament—Session 1869.
London Necropolis and National Mausoleum.

corner of the land purchased
farthest from London and the
station of Woking Common).
This cemetery is now Brookwood
Cemetery and still one of the
largest in Europe.

Before the first phase was even
complete, the London Necropolis
Company was already petitioning
Parliament for a second Act
which would allow them to sell
off any surplus land for
development.

(Repeal of Restrictions as to the Sale of Surplua
Lands; Amendment of Acts.) ‘

OTICE is hereby given, that the London

Necropolis and National Mausoleum Com-

pa_nf (bereinafter called the Company) intend to

apply to Parliament in the ensuing session for

leave to bring in a Bill and to passan Act for the

following, or some of the following purposes, that
is to say :—

1. To enable the Company to sell, lease, and
exchangé the whole or any part of the lands pur-
chased and acquired by them in the parish-of
Woking, in the county of Surrey, which have not
been set apart as a .cemetery or burial-ground,
and which are not required for the purposes of the
Company’s undertaking ; and to authorise the
erection of houses and buildings upon such lands,

Figure 1. London Gazette 17 November 1868

Some of the first land sold was for institutions: The Surrey County Asylum
for Pauper Lunatics, better known in more recent times as Brookwood

1 Hansard, HC Deb 27 February 1852 vol 119 cc925-30
1



Hospital, and the Woking Prison for Invalid Convicts, later to become
Inkerman Barracks.

Woking Prison

A prison, primarily for invalided male convicts, was built on the common,
two miles from Woking Station. The main prison building was designed by
Sir Joshua Jebb and Arthur Blomfield. Construction started in April 1859.
It received its first officers and inmates a year later when they were
transferred from Lewes, Carisbrooke and Dartmoor prisons.

Ten years later, the first purpose-built female convict prison in Britain,
adjacent to the male invalid prison, was opened in April 1869, bringing to a
close the use of prisons at Brixton and Parkhurst for women. The male
prisoners were used to help construct the women'’s prison, to reduce costs.

The combined prisons covered 63 acres and was documented, during
construction, to have a wall 18 feet high. It held, on average, 650 inmates
at any one time and contained both a hospital ward and an insane inmate
ward.

# Wipa,
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The prisons were supplied by gas from their own gas works (seen on the
right hand side of Figure 2).

The male prison was closed in March 1889, as the decline in the convict
population made it unnecessary to maintain a separate prison for invalids.
The female prison closed in November 1895 when the female prisoners were
transferred to the new female prison at Aylesbury; the buildings were
handed over to the War Office.

s
e
il

The impact that the prison had on Tre Bawxrvercy or A Conx.D
the local area was significant. M"dm: il sook

|
|
_s

Firstly, there was an influx of dﬁyﬂﬂﬂnzﬂ‘m:- . l!::‘l‘:hh&
builders and labourers to construct |£1,629, of which the sam of £488 5s. 5d. was un
the buildings. These were followed m“":.ﬁ"‘}&“.ﬂ.':ﬂ'?ﬁm
by the staffs of the prison and then | seurities in :‘:‘;;"‘3’“ m7 rq u‘_g
large numbers of soldiers (some |[debtor was examined length by Mr. Jobn

Te

1
13
I
T
FE

with families) when the pPriSon | hers wers also p,:., Mr. J. M.

office of Mesars. Smallpeice and Sons), representiog »

became a barracks. secured creditor, Mr. Sberman and Mre. Lethbridge,
ereditors, — ying to Mr. Gibeon, the debtor said

the business which bad

In  March 1893, the public |aboat2 years ago be took over
examination in the bankruptcy of [wss fa s bad state,
Augustus Carter, corn dealer, took ;
place. He stated that his business | his property had been F‘u'r
had ‘greatly decreased owing to the |whetber be had mot over-estimated
closure of Woking male prison three |§ ot vrsy ight, shoogh
years ago.’ '&'

the

2f
i
(41
s
fgif
B
I
?iri

ez
g
3
g
2

g
%
g.
il
é?{.
vEE
i

B
T
g
ik
*Eg
FiF

. . sell the w. Desa
Figure 3. Bankruptcy: West Surrey Times | comeern. examination was closed after a few |
18 March 1893  questions by Mr. Sberman, who maintaioed that the |
v 3 .

Aldershot - Home of the British Army

Aldershot became the main centre of the British Army within the United
Kingdom in 1854. The Army needed a large concentration of troops in the
south of England, as the main threat to the United Kingdom came from
across the English Channel.

The heathland surrounding Aldershot was ideal for use by the military, as it
is low grade agricultural land, so a series of barracks were constructed in
the area. Three permanent cavalry barracks, three infantry barracks and
two artillery barracks were constructed in the period from 1856 to 1859.

The Barracks Act of 1890 led to a significant construction programme to

provide suitable accommodation for troops in the Aldershot area. An area of

land to the north of Aldershot was chosen for the expansion of the barracks.

Those located to the north of the Basingstoke Canal became known as North
3



Camp, while those to the south, South Camp. All were built in the period
from 1895 to 1900. A long, straight road (now known as Queen’s Avenue)
leading from Aldershot bisected the South Camp and North Camp.
Aldershot became the location for the largest, single, peacetime
concentration of troops in the British Army.

As the number of units assigned to Aldershot Command grew, additional
barracks had to be built in the surrounding area of north-east Hampshire
and south-west Surrey.

Inkerman Barracks

On Thursday 27th February 1890, it was announced in the House of
Commons, that the Government intended to acquire Woking Prison and
convert it into barracks. A sum of £57,000 was allocated for the acquisition
and conversion.?

In 1892, work began converting buildings of the male prison into barracks
capable of accommodating two infantry battalions. The barracks were
named after the 1854 Battle of Inkerman, a battle during the Crimean War.

Initially the plan was for the female prison to also be converted to barracks
to house an artillery regiment. Then it was to be levelled and a new barrack
constructed for a cavalry regiment. By 1897, these and other plans had
been abandoned with the cavalry regiment being housed elsewhere within
the Aldershot District.

2 Barracks Act of 1890



EARLY DAYS
CONVERSION

Conversion of Men’s Prison

In 1892, the 12th Company of the Royal Engineers moved into the male
prison and began converting it into barracks. The main difficulty was that
the prison had been designed on the single-cell basis; the walls defining
these cells were load-bearing and supporting the upper floors. New
supports for the upper floors had to be inserted before the walls could be
removed to convert the single-cells into barrack-rooms.

It was in 1893 that it was announced the name of the new barracks would
be “Inkerman Barracks”.

\,/ vy
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Figure 4. Inkerman Barracks, 1896 Ordnance Survey plan



The conversion of the main building was
carried out under the direction of Major
(later Colonel) Robert Charles Hellard
R.E. and completed without calling in
contractors. However, the work of
conversion of other buildings and
constructing the few entirely new
buildings was put out to tender.

Figure 5. Colonel Robert
C Hellard (1851-1929)

The former Roman Catholic Chapel of the male prison was converted and
extended to create the recreation establishment. This work was carried out
between September 1893 and October 1894 by the Woking builder Alfred
Augustus Gale. The cost was £3,677.3 This block included a grocery store,
a library and accommodation for the manager and for the librarian.

Figure 6. Recreation establishment plan

During the same period, Alfred Gale also built stables for two battalions
(each for 12 horses), two waggon sheds (each to hold 2 carts and 4 waggons)
and a coal-yard to hold 100 tons of coal. Cost for this was £2,148.4

3 TNA, WO 78/3473, Inkerman Barracks, Woking Record plans of Recreation Establishment
4 TNA, WO 78/3473, Inkerman Barracks, Woking Record plans of Transport stables, Waggon sheds &
Coal-yard

6



Figure 7. Recreation establishment elevations

The most prominent feature of the prison
buildings had been the central clock
tower, or watch-tower. When the prison
was closed, the Home Office had the clock
removed and taken away.

The War Department commissioned a
new clock; it was made by J W Benson of
Ludgate Hill.

The clock showed the time on four copper
dials, six feet nine inches in diameter,
painted and with gilded numerals. The
pendulum, which swung every 1%
seconds had a bob weighing 12 hundred-
weight. The bell on which the hours were
Figure 8. Clock tower struck weighed 6 hundred-weight.>

The new clock was installed during March 1893.

Between June 1894 and May 1895, a canteen and skittle alley was
constructed. The contractor for this work was Mr D Charteris of
Westminster.©

Upon completion of the conversion and the subsequent occupation of the
barracks, the press were invited to visit:

“The buildings have been admirably converted into quarters for the
accommodation of a battalion of infantry on the peace establishment, the

5 A hundred-weight (cwt) was an imperial measure equal to 112 pounds (51kg)
6 TNA, WO 78/3473, Inkerman Barracks, Woking Record plans of Canteen & Skittle Alley
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actual space accommodation being for 766 officers, non-commissioned officers
and men.

Almost the first thing that strikes the visitor to the Inkerman Barracks who
proceeds there with his mind preoccupied with thoughts of the repulsiveness
of prisons and prison life (writes a competent authority to a London
contemporary) is the openness of everything. A great feature seems to be
absent, and it is not possible for a moment to realise what seems wanting.
Then it is seen that the high, unscalable boundary wall has been lopped, and
only a few feet of it remains, and this is surmounted with a neat coping
instead of the spike-barred top of old. Entering by the main gate on the right
at this time is the orderly room, a waiting-room, and the commanding officer's
office. These were formerly the governor's office and the rooms for the
reception of convicts. Opposite to this block is the guard-room and the cells.
Adjoining is the quartermaster’s stores, and on the other aide, adjoining the
orderly room, the recreation establishment (formerly the Roman Catholic
church), coffee bar, or dry canteen, coffee and reading rooms, library, etc. The
barrack block forms three sides of a square, the ground in front forming the
general parade. In the main block there are three floors, and in each the
communications are fortunately under cover. The corridor which runs from
end to end of the main block is between 500 feet and 600 feet long. The
military authorities — from the Quartermaster General downwards — pride
themselves upon having been able to provide in the Inkerman barracks
dining-rooms for the use of the privates, which in no previous case have they
succeeded in doing. Each company has its own dining-room, opposite to
which, on the other side of the corridor, is a neatly-arranged scullery, with
shelves, plate-racks and sink, so that here, at any rate, there can be no
excuse for the littering of crockery or utensils in the living or adjoining rooms.
Each company has in addition a room for the storage of spare arms and kits
and general effects awaiting issue, which in the majority of barracks have to
be put away aa best they can, usually in the not too spacious bunk occupied
by an unmarried sergeant. The men's sleeping rooms are on the upper floors.
Some day at the Inkerman Barracks these apartments may come to be called
dormitories, instead of the old stereotyped term, ‘barrack-rooms." The baths
and wash-houses are excellently appointed, and the general sanitary
appliances of quite modem description. The sergeants’ mess is most
comfortable, and in time, no doubt, it will be furnished as luxuriously as are
some of those at Aldershot. The old church (Anglican) has been turned into a
gymnasium, in which the choir loft has been suffered to remain. This will be
used as a spectators' gallery when displays are given. Lighter and brighter
colours have been employed in the general scheme of decoration than usual,
and one looks in vain for the startling contrasts of dour slatey drab and
gleaming whitewash which used to be universal a few years ago in the old
barrack-rooms. The old order has given way to one that is altogether new,
and, strange to say, the public purse has not to any appreciable extent been
drawn upon more than in the days that are gone.

In the old prison days the male and female sides were quite apart, and under
separate governorship. The main entrances of each stood on opposite sides of
a road which runs east and west, in which, between the respective blocks, are
a number of cottages and villas, the former having been occupied by the
prison warders, and, the latter by the superior and professional officials.

8



These in future will be occupied by the married soldiers and their families
carried on the establishment and by the officers of the station respectively.
Then, such as they are, it is doubtful whether, even in the most modern
barracks. those at Aldershot included, so good quarters can be found at any
other station, and there is a consensus of opinion that they cannot be excelled
anywhere. A splendidly appointed mess-house for the officers has been
erected in close proximity to the main blocks, and a number of men are now
busily engaged in laying out a cricket ground and tennis courts.”

Conversion of Women’s Prison

The final female prisoners, whose sentences had not yet expired, were
transferred to Aylesbury in November 1895, just days before the first troops
arrived to occupy the former male prison. The female prison then stood
empty for six years as plans were modified, approved, abandoned and new
plans made. Originally, the plans were to raze the prison buildings to the
ground and for a cavalry regiment to occupy new barracks built on the site.
Later it was planned as the home for three batteries of horse artillery. A
piece of land, of area approximately 1 square mile, to the rear of the old
prison was purchased from the Woking Investment Company and, in
November 1900, was fenced in. This land, which extended down to Robin
Hood Road was intended for the stables and other ancillary buildings.

By mid-1901, as part of War Office reforms, it had been decided that
military prisoners would not in future be held in civilian prisons. The old
female prison buildings at Woking would be converted into a military prison.
It would be the largest military prison in the country and, when completed,
would receive prisoners from British stations all over the world.

Towards the end of 1901, work had begun on A Block (that part in the best
state of repair). Mess s Martin and Wells, of Aldershot, had a large number
of men making 60 cells — the old cells being considered too small. Each of
the new cells were to be lit by electricity and fitted with an electric bell. This
work was to be undertaken by Henry Quartermaine, of Woking.”

Major Charles Cecil Daniel, of the Royal Scots, then Governor of H.M.
Military Prison Cork was appointed to take charge as Governor. In 1904, he
transferred to Dover.
ENTERTAINMENT AT THE ';.\RH.\' :>] Until 1 October ]_907, the prison was
On Wadnesday afternoon, in the Chure -

stitute, Major Picot (governor of the defention only a detention prison.® From that

barrachs) and Mrs. P ntertauned the prison

Sialt nud theis | tea. About 100 ac- date, upon the closure of Dover
. .'uf the M n. :.2' s bsec uent by eq o . . .
R o Taiiad e Pubth e e Military Prison, it became the chief

how.  Amone those present were Col, Evans, o
Mator Porier Cant. Pox, Mrs, Nicolson, Mrs. military gaol. It had by then 218
Brush, Mrs. Jellicoe, Mrs. Hartley, M.

Casale, Si cells.

Figure 9. Woking News & Mail 1 Jan 1907

7 Woking News & Mail, 1902
8 Commanding Officers had the power to summarily sentence offenders to up to 28 days detention.
Committal to a military prison could only be carried out by General or District Court-martial.
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Charles Cecil Daniel, now acting Lt Colonel, transferred back to Woking.

It seems that the original
women’s prison included
an Anglican church and
a Roman Catholic chapel.
These were retained and
converted into one
(presumably Anglican)
chapel for the military.°

Figure 11. Female prisoners in
the chapel

[Mustrated London News|

The 1911 Census lists 58 prisoners undergoing sentence in the military
prison.!0

® The Roman Catholic chapel of the former men’s prison had been converted into the recreational
facility and the Anglican church into a gymnasium
10 TNA, Series RG14: 33/1/24, Census Returns of England and Wales, 1911
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Woking Female Prison had a
hospital and infirmary.
Possibly, these were in the
north-eastern wing which,
during the conversion, was
detached from the rest of the
building (the connecting wing
being demolished) and
converted into a  military
hospital. The hospital is shown
on the 1913 OS plan.

Lieutenant Colonel (later Major
General) Henry Neville ‘Harry’
Thompson RAMC was appointed
Commander of the Hospital in
1905.

Figure 12. Harry Neville
Thompson in 1918

LAYOUT

A survey was conducted of the Infantry Barracks in 1907. It was mainly
concerned with water supply, sanitation and drainage. A plan produced
shows the layout of buildings and services. Water was supplied by the
Woking Water & Gas Company and Electricity by the Woking Electric
Supply Company Ltd. Foul drains connected to the Woking Urban District
sewer whilst rainwater was fed into a ditch.!! Of note is the 100,000 gallon
water tank that was located under the parade ground (immediately to the
north-west of the main building).

The Infantry Barracks were situated to the right of Raglan Road, which ran
South-west to North-east (bottom to top in Figure 13), whilst the prison was
to the left.

The Commanding Officer’s quarters, Inkerman Housel?, was at the top of
Raglan Road. This was previously the accommodation of the governor of the
men’s prison.

11 SHC, 6788/roll33, Site and ground floor plan of Inkerman Barracks, Woking (1907)

12 Officers’ quarters were generally named whilst those for Warrant Officers and NCOs were
numbered
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Figure 13. Layout — key from 1907 survey superimposed on 1896 OS Plan
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Then, heading south-west, came a number of officers’ quarters, followed by
warrant officers and senior non-commissioned officers (NCOs) married
quarters. Quarters for married junior NCOs were in a terrace along Barrack
Path (now Victoria Road), named Wellington Terrace.

7

Inkerman Barracks.
Wokar\g

Figure 15. Junior NCOs’ Married Quarters
The posts mark where [now] Victoria Road (foreground) met Barrack Path

Raglan Road continued, curving to the east and heading southwards, from

Barrack Path to Hermitage Road (on maps from the 1950s to 1970 this

section is named Rolica Road). On the west side of the road, opposite the
13



sports ground, were five detached buildings.

Four of these were officers’

quarters. The fifth, nearest to the Hermitage Road, was the Officers’ Mess.

| Officer's Mess RMP Depot

Figure 16. Officers’ Mess ¢.1960

By the 1930s, at least three of these houses (designated ‘A’ House, ‘B’ House
& ‘C’ House) seem to have been multiple-occupancy buildings used as
additional accommodation for the Officers’ Mess. Other houses were also
within the area bounded by Barrack Path, Inkerman Road, Hermitage Road
and Rolica Road. These were probably all officers’ accommodation.

Shooting Ranges

Two shooting ranges were
constructed. They are clearly shown
on a plan hand-drawn by the 1949-
56 Weapons Training Officer (Figure
81).

An outdoor 30-yard range was
constructed near the north-east end
of the main barrack block. An
indoor 25 yard range was built just
south-east of the married officers’
quarters, shown on the 1894-95
plans.

Figure 17. 30 yard shooting range
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Figure 18. Plan of 25-yard shooting gallery

The plan of the shooting gallery (Figure 18) also shows a fives court.!3

13 Fives is an English handball sport derived from jeu de paume, similar to the games of handball,
Basque pelota, and squash. The origin of the word 'fives' is uncertain, but it probably refers to the
fingers, as in 'a bunch of fives'; the name has been used since the 17th century.

15
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Figure 22. Raglan Road, looking towards Inkerman House o

Figure 21. View from East o
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OCCUPATION

As well as those regiments listed below and later, there was a constant
presence of sub-units from various supporting branches, including the
military police, Army Service Corps (A.S.C.), Army Ordnance Corps (A.O.C.),
Army Medical Corps and Royal Engineers (R.E.).

Queen’s Royal (West Surrey) Regiment

On 13th November 1895, the first troops of the 2nd Battalion of the Queen’s
Royal (West Surrey) Regiment moved into Inkerman Barracks, transferring
from Dover. They were followed by the rest of the regiment two weeks later,
on Thursday November 28th.14

Queen’s Royal (West Surrey) Regiment

The Queen's Royal Regiment was the senior English line
infantry regiment of the British Army, behind only the
Royal Scots in the British Army order of precedence.

Founded: 1661

In 1959, the regiment was amalgamated with the East
Surrey Regt, to form a single county regiment called the
Queen's Royal Surrey Regiment. On 31st December 1966,
# this was amalgamated with the Queen's Own Buffs, The
Royal Kent Regt, the Royal Sussex Regt and the Middlesex
Regt (Duke of Cambridge's Own) to form the Queen's
Regiment.

The military tended to forge close |THRE QUEENS REGT. v. Mr. . B WILSON'S XI.

] ] YL Played at Tukerman Barracks, Woking, on W ednes-

links with the local communities day. and resulted in a win for Queen's Regt. by two
. guals Lo one.

where they were stationed. The Q-mu lm-luu wal ; Dalton and Resd,

. Bennett, Emmett, aml Brice, half-lacks ;

regiments would hold concert !lumn Gilbanke, Andrews, Macnamara, and Phillips,

evenings and play sports matches o Wilson's X1.—Penfuld, gual ; Benfold and

. hmmuwm.nmuwxnwm
against local teams. Queens Road backs ; Humphreys, Farrow, Lieut. Wilson, Cappe,
. . . and 2ud Licut. Livesay, forwards,
in Knaphill was named in honour = s — —

T W REGT. v. CHERTSEY F.0.

of the Queen’s Royal (West Surrey) = Played umcm.-mn':m‘}b: Queen's
won by three guals to one.

Regiment. Queen’s. - rmu:.r ; Dalton and Read, dacks ;
Emmett, Rrice lhumt half-backs :  Lieut.
Wilson, Maarice, Gllbanke, Macnamara, and Phillips,
The 2nd Battalion left Inkerman | frwanis

Barracks in July 1898, marching to THE QUEEN'S REGT. v. THE DEVON REGT.
X . Played at Woking «n Saturday w when the
the tune ‘The girl I left behind me’. [Queen’s won by two guals o oie. game was
. evenly con all through.  The Qucen ying

They deployed to South Africa |withthe wind, scored twice from shots by crh

aml Macnamara, Py wing
where they fought from 1899 to ilhe secund half. Dalton, Read, -u":-:: phu.;: well
fur the winners, and Prosser for the

5

1904, including during the Second parhe Queew's. —Haker, yoal ; Dalton and Red,
Boer War (1899-1902). Maurice, Olhamke, Licat. Wilon, Macnamare. and

Figure 23. Football reports 1897

14 West Surrey Times 16 November 1895; TNA, WO 156/452, Baptism Register Garrison Chapel,
Inkerman Barracks
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Figure 24. West Surreys at Inkerman Barracks, 1896
Standing: Ptes Pollock, Wyber, u/k, Pioneer Buckland, Quartermaine, Mascall, L/c
Donoghue, Baker. Sitting: Ptes Bates, Mahoney, Hammond, L/c Diaper, Bennett,
Brickwood, u/k. Front row: Ptes Knight, Barker, Cole, u/k, Wicker

Figure 25. 2nd Bn West Surrey Regt., 1898
(probably in South Africa)

East Surrey Regiment

The Queen’s Royal Regiment was replaced by the 2nd Bn of the East Surrey
Regiment (until October 1899 when it too was deployed to South Africa) and
then by the 4th Bn of the same regiment.

18




East Surrey Regiment

Founded: 1881

In 1959, the regiment was amalgamated with the West
Surrey Regt, to form a single county regiment called the
Queen's Royal Surrey Regiment. On 31st December 1966,
this was amalgamated with the Queen's Own Buffs, The
Royal Kent Regt, the Royal Sussex Regt and the Middlesex
Regt (Duke of Cambridge's Own) to form the Queen's
Regiment.

&‘m Daxce, — The opening dnz:| The 4th Bn was a reserve battalion
place on Friday evening, when there was & formed from the 3rd Royal Surrey
good »amber present and & : Militia in 1881; it was embodied for
time gv!ﬂdbyﬂn

regimental band. Colour-Sergt. Buffitt was service on 4th December 1899,
the chairman of the Dance Committee. disembodied on 12th July 1901, and
Figure 27. West Surrey Times 22 Oct 1898 re-embodied again for service during

the Second Boer War in South Africa.

Royal Reserve Regiment

The 4th Bn East Sussex Regt was succeeded in May 1900 by the 1st Bn of
the Royal Northern Reserves Regiment. Inkerman Barracks was much over-
crowded at this time with a total of 1,750 men; The 1st Bn were sleeping
under canvas.!®

15 West Surrey Times 11 May 1900
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Royal Reserve Regiments

The Royal Reserve Regiments were reserve infantry and
cavalry regiments of the British Army in existence from 1900
to 1901.

The Second Boer War broke out in South Africa in October
1899. The government soon realised they needed
considerably more troops to win the war, and larger parts of
the regular army, militia and yeomanry regiments were sent
to South Africa. Shortly thereafter, Royal Reserve battalions
were formed from veteran soldiers in the United Kingdom for
Home Service. Time-expired warrant officers, non-
commissioned officers and other ranks between the ages of
21 and 45 would enlist for service in the United Kingdom for
a period of one year and receive a bounty of £22.

A fourth Bn of the Royal Northern Reserves Regiment was formed from the
excess personnel and, on 27t June, moved from Inkerman to the Redan Hill
Camp, Aldershot.!>.16

ILITARY SMOKING CONCERY.
'-.L“m The ' smoker * given at Inkerman Barracks on

-ﬂl.:‘-hui-':-:ﬂdpuby‘.o SO Nght m S Moy oersdepitases
Battalion Royal Northern Reserves was dis

-I u““‘" sed. but uhllﬂ “I “m. "".nl unctly successful. Over 200 of the military end
only 30,000 themesives civilans were present. Among the officers
ment. ' Tho regiment sakioned st Lnkerman Doy eer Cyrins Bednied Cpt. Hedly
Barracks, 'mm t0 be & popular scrves): Capt. Carnegie, &m. Crinlin, 2nd
one, for it bas been necessary %o form  Lieuts. Drew, Edirunds, ‘Ward, Waller, and
nﬂh%ﬁuﬂnhmn-hd Bcully (of the 4 Royal Tish)., There were
men quartered there. new bas- :m:e;:“w“ ;E D'mmp and Col.-
and 16 sletaly Geigusted the Sb Detilies .::'t:'.::..‘l ':'r““a':‘ o befe ":I""'m’mgu"

w

e o e e L e s
receive ir ol ) of il and

u—m“(w Ozxley, and is quar- & Joﬁl.n- ;do the high ssteem Y:l';:ﬂ.
tered in tents in & fleld, near the barracks,  !bey are heid. The Irish Guards (represented

by Sergt.-Major Burt), and several of the Royal
neers cnd Royal Artillery were also prescnt.
Figure 28. West Surrey Times 9 Jun 1900 chair was taken by Beret .Mainr Miller

Figure 29. West Surrey Times 30 Nov 1900

!
3
E

The 1st Bn remained at Inkerman until March 1901.

Royal Irish Rifles

The 1st Bn of the Royal Northern Reserves Regiment was joined at Inkerman
Barracks on 8t October 1900 by the 4th Bn (North Tipperary Militia) Royal
Irish Rifles.

16 West Surrey Times 30 June 1900



Royal Irish Rifles

Founded: 1881

The Royal Irish Rifles (became the Royal Ulster Rifles from
1 January 1921) was an infantry rifle regiment of the
British Army, first created in 1881 by the amalgamation of
the 83rd (County of Dublin) Regiment of Foot and the
86th (Royal County Down) Regiment of Foot.

In 1968 the Royal Ulster Rifles was amalgamated with the
other regiments of the North Irish Brigade, the Royal Irish
Fusiliers (Princess Victoria's), and the Royal Inniskilling
Fusiliers to create the Royal Irish Rangers.

4th Bn Royal Irish Rifles departed
Inkerman on 4t July 1901. They
headed to Clonmel, Ireland where the
unit was disbanded.

ENAPHILL.
MiLrtarY News.—The Commanding Officer of
the 4th Battalion Royal Insh Regiment has

approved of the following promotions and ap-
pointments, to take effect from the 1st inst.. to

complote establishment : To be Corporals, Lee.-

Corporal Maume, Lee.-Corporal Menton, Lee..

Infantry Barracks h ."D""C";“mf:dpnlf&cmn““'“m"hp:&’

Ryan, Private Carew and Private Hannon. All

public-houses in the vicinity of Inkerman Bar-

zlhmoutolm till after 12 mnoon
y.

Figure 30. West Surrey Times 17 Nov 1900

The Inkerman
were unoccupied from July 1901
until October 1902, due to a
significant proportion of the Army
being deployed in South Africa.

Royal Berkshire Regiment

The 1st Battalion the Royal Berkshire Regiment took over Inkerman
Barracks on 26t October 1902. The battalion arrived at Southampton in SS
'Sardinia’ from Gibraltar, disembarked and went by rail to Woking.!”

Royal Berkshire Regiment
Founded: 1881

The Royal Berkshire Regiment was a line infantry regiment of
the British Army. The regiment was created in 1881, as the
Princess Charlotte of Wales's (Royal Berkshire Regiment), by
the amalgamation of the 49th (Princess Charlotte of Wales's)
(Hertfordshire) Regiment of Foot and the 66th (Berkshire)
Regiment of Foot. In 1921, it was renamed the Royal
Berkshire Regiment (Princess Charlotte of Wales's).

On 9 June 1959, the Royal Berkshire Regiment was
amalgamated with the Wiltshire Regiment (Duke of
Edinburgh's) to form the Duke of Edinburgh's Royal Regiment (Berkshire and Wiltshire)
which was again amalgamated, on 27 July 1994, with the Gloucestershire Regiment to
create the Royal Gloucestershire, Berkshire and Wiltshire Regiment.

17 The Rifles Berkshire & Wiltshire Museum https://www.thewardrobe.org.uk/
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The Princess Charlotte of Wales's 1¢t Royal 1€ Dbattalion moved into new
Porks Regiment arrived  at Woking from  ‘experimental’ accommodation, being
Gibraltar on Runday, to take up their quar- . e e .
ters at Inkerman Barracks, which have so 1in individual cubicles rather than
T o B At o, b s barrac rooms.
with their installation, a War Office experi-
went is being tried. Bome of the barmek On 29 Sept 1904, 1st Battalion left
rooms have heen converted into cubicles, of ] .
which over 100 are provided, the dimensions of ' OKing by rail to Holyhead to

cach being 12ft. Bins. by 5t 6ins, with & embark for Dublin.!8
h::rbt of 6ft. 6in. The cubicles are well lit
and ventilated, and electric light is fitted.

Figure 31. West Surrey Times Oct 1902

Lt Col T du B Whaite RAMCA produced a report in 190719, providing a critique of the
cubicles. He stated that there were three styles of cubicles, distinguished by the partition
walls: The partitions were 6 feet 6 inches high and of woodwork painted khaki colour. In
style 1, the partitions reached down to the floor. In style 2, there was a six-inch gap
between the door and the floor and, in the third style, a six-inch gap between the floor and
the door and partitions on three sides. In all cases, the fourth side was formed by the wall
of the building.
The cubicles were well-liked by the men and were allocated as a reward for good behaviour.
The drawbacks, as seen by Colonel Whaite, were:

e Men in the cubicles became detached from others in their Company

e For disinfection, on account of infectious diseases, they are inconvenient and greatly
increase the surface area to be disinfected

e Loss of useable accommodation space and additional expense.

Royal Scots Regiment

The 2nd Bn Royal Scots Regiment occupied Inkerman Barracks from
October 1904 until October 1905.

Royal Scots Regiment

Founded: 1633

The Royal Scots (The Royal Regiment), once known as the
Royal Regiment of Foot, was the oldest and most senior
infantry regiment of the line of the British Army

The regiment existed continuously until 2006, when it
amalgamated with the King's Own Scottish Borderers to
become the Royal Scots Borderers, which merged with the
Royal Highland Fusiliers (Princess Margaret's Own Glasgow
and Ayrshire Regiment), the Black Watch, the Highlanders
(Seaforth, Gordons and Camerons) and the Argyll and Sutherland Highlanders to form the
Royal Regiment of Scotland.

18 The Rifles Berkshire & Wiltshire Museum https://www.thewardrobe.org.uk/
19 Journal of the Royal Army Medical Corps Vol. VIII January-June 1907

22



https://www.thewardrobe.org.uk/

companies—instead of n
single companios as hitherto—under & mount-

Figure 32. West Surrey Times 24 Feb 1905

Liverpool Regiment

g :bo Royal :wu Regiment to
ti v ) aro
le‘:v'c ?: the ntu’-n for Bhorncliffe. The
date is now officially given as ‘about October
19th." and their t

;}!’Ftl
il
|
¥
i_

Figure 33. West Surrey Times Aug 1905

The 2nd Bn (King’s) Liverpool Regiment moved into Inkerman, from
Blackdown, in October 1905. They stayed for just over two years — until they
were relieved by the 1st Bn East Lancashire Regiment in February 1908.

Liverpool Regiment

Founded: 1685

and Border).

The King's Regiment (Liverpool) was one of the oldest line
infantry regiments of the British Army, having been formed in
1685 and numbered as the 8th (The King's) Regiment of Foot
in 1751. Unlike most British Army infantry regiments, which
were associated with a county, the King's represented the city
of Liverpool. After 273 years of continuous existence, the
regiment was amalgamated with the Manchester Regiment in
1958 to form the King's Regiment (Liverpool and Manchester),
which was later amalgamated with the King's Own Royal Border Regiment and the Queen's
Lancashire Regiment to form the present Duke of Lancaster's Regiment (King's, Lancashire

KING’S REGIMENT.

Capt. Arthur H. P. Harrisson, of the King’s
Regiment, stationed at Inkerman Barracks,
has been promoted to the rank of major, vice
Major H. Ross-Johnson, retired, on retired
pay.—Another draft: from the regiment will
leave for India on Saturday.

Figure 34. Woking News & Mail
15 February 1907
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Although later crossed through, the
survey of the barracks conducted in
1907 did include a list of personnel
accommodated within the barracks
(Table 1), totalling 772.




Description No.

Commanding Officer’s Office 1
Officers 12
Officers’ Servants 13
Chaplain 1
O.C. Barracks 1
W.O.s 4 CONCERT AT THE BARRACKS,

In the Church Room, at Inkerman DBar-
ante?n Manager 1 racks, a most enjoyable conoert was held on
Librarian 1 :;::.dncaiuy week. Amongst those who gave

. ir services were Mrs, Lunsd f K
Recreation Est Manager 1 hill, whose ﬁln;\'oico“wasnmugf nporew to :
NCOs & Men (Barracks) 716 Capt. C. L. Harford, who sang several songs

. with Lis usual success; Mr, Moulding and
Over Guard H (R Police & 8 Mr. Breton, who sang most dedightfully; Mr.
Wards) 10 Q:;rdu:)«;r ::iLso recited well, and displayed ocon-
: siderable dramatic talent Sergt. Neit and
Married Officers N.C.O.s & Men 1 Corpllx. Jomls. the King's Regiment, gave two
M F Works excellent duets on cornot and piano, their
2 sclections being particularly well crl;oceu.
Transport, Stables

Figure 35. Woking News & Mail
Table 1 Personnel accommodated at 29 March 1907

Inkerman Barracks 1907

BARRACK PATH. In 1907, it was reported that the

The Highways Commilice reported thaithe 45 wer reventin le from
clerk had writtan to the Commanding Officer ] tary were prevent g.peop € 1ro B
at Inkerman Barracks staling that it had using Barrack Path. It is unclear if
been reported that persons had been prevent- hi . d di
ed by his orders from using the Barrack Path, this was a misunderstan mg or a
and thal tho Council felt sure that if such ; ;
was the case it must have been done under a deliberate pOhCy'
misapprehension; as the War Office was quite
aware that this was a public footpath. The
Commnanding Officor, in reply, stated that
there was no intention to infringe the rights . . .
of the public to use the Darrack Path as a Figure 36. Woking News & Mail 13 Dec 1907

| footpath. A petition forwarded by Messrs.
™o.o T Lt o

| FOSFEAL 3 T BUAN PR ES I Py T IR R

East Lancashire Regiment

The 1st Bn East Lancashire Regiment arrived at Inkerman Barracks in
February 1908. On 26t of that month, the band played at an entertainment
in Woking Public Hall, in aid of the L&SWR Servants’ Orphanage.

East Lancashire Regiment

Founded: 1881

The East Lancashire Regiment was a line infantry regiment of
the British Army. The regiment was formed in 1881 under
the Childers Reforms by the amalgamation of the 30th
(Cambridgeshire) Regiment of Foot and 59th (2nd
Nottinghamshire) Regiment of Foot with the militia and rifle
volunteer units of eastern Lancashire. In 1958 the regiment
was amalgamated with the South Lancashire Regiment to
form the Lancashire Regiment which was, in 1970, merged
with the Loyal Regiment (North Lancashire) to form the
Queen's Lancashire Regiment.

In 2006, the Queen's Lancashire was further amalgamated with the King's Own Royal
Border Regiment and the King's Regiment (Liverpool and Manchester) to form the present
Duke of Lancaster's Regiment (King's, Lancashire and Border).
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The 1st Bn was one of those in attendance at the Coronation of King George
V, in June 1911. They marched from the barracks to Woking Station and
went to London by train. The day after the Coronation, they returned the

same way.

Figure 37. East Lancashire Regiment
Goldsworth Road, Woking 22 June 1911 (returning from Coronation of George V)

An ]
Marrison, Kast Lancs moot,
eycling 10 the ranges at Bisloy he was hu-k«l
down by 3 motor car driven by Lord Gerrard,
near the Ganbaldi Inn.  Ho was picked u
gnconscious and a‘tended by Dr. Max
and was submequently removed to the hospital
st lnkerman Barracks, where he was found
to be suffering from bemor . & fractured
kneo, and several facal injuries. The
patient is making satisfactory progress.

ENTERTAINMENT,

A very enjovable entertainment was given
st tho gymnasium, Inkerman barracks, on
Wednosday evening, by the garrison school
children. in axd of the sohool library fund.
The band of the Fast Lancs. Regiment played
swloctions, and the children, in additon o
singing several songs, gave eahubitions of
Morrie and other dancing.

Figure 38. Surrey Advertiser 26 June 1909

AL Inkerman on Saturday, Byfiect

were defeated Boore : —

HIJ. ~Capt. Geldie b

""’3?-“‘- run out_ 65;
!'mbh. 0.

b 31; Capt, c

Howell, M Clayhill ¢ b

:M 24: Col. . Coson ¢ Gedirey b

Beraery X g ey ey

3 ¢

luw,-b = ‘-I D. Gome not

&"‘..;&.“""".""r"u

nusm—.‘r-x“w':s

17: A KL | O: R C.

b Goldie, §; L. Stevens not out, 7; Sher

bkohbﬂdﬁo.’:l.?hb

0; V. Howell b Coxon, 0; K. Warren d

4: total, §7. Gecond innings, M for 4 w, (L.

R. Stevens 19,

Figure 39. West Surrey Times 18 June 1910
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WOKING PETIY SESSIONS. Despite the generally good relations

- AT, — between the resident battalions and
TURD —“"" C"' R. Phayre ) public, there were occasional

‘m-..). ul'h K.C. .y Mewrs. )

. A. Wellesley, A. Brown sad C. F. M. incidents of bad behaviour, petty

Wm. Davis, of St. John's '*iﬂ Liewt. theft and disregard of laws by
wul ; i..:...hm'-., .-‘ ‘m military personnel.

fined 2. .ola.;ca n&' c}cu withoat, | u.u The 1911 Census records 724
fined 5o. for ha used bad o Offlcers NCOs and men and 151

:.':':1'.::1’ Srd.—P.C. Ellis and Bupt. Marks ‘Gther inmates’ in the barracks (plus
Figure 40. West Surrey Times 16 July 1910 132 in the military prison).
The battalion was originally due to leave Inkerman for Colchester in
September 1911, however in March that year the move was postponed until
January 1912.

Royal Sussex Regiment

The 2nd Bn Royal Sussex Regiment succeeded the 1st Bn East Lancashire
Regiment, in January 1912, after the latter had been in residence for four
years.

Royal Sussex Regiment

/:’T‘ff-\ Founded: 1881

The Royal Sussex Regiment was a line infantry regiment of the
British Army. The regiment was formed in 1881 by the
amalgamation of the 35th (Royal Sussex) Regiment of Foot
and the 107th Regiment of Foot (Bengal Light Infantry).

On 31st December 1966, the Royal Sussex Regiment was
amalgamated with the Queen's Royal Surrey Regiment, the
Queen's Own Buffs, The Royal Kent Regiment, and the
Middlesex Regiment (Duke of Cambridge's Own) to form the
Queen's Regiment; which was later, on 9th September 1992,
amalgamated with the Royal Hampshire Regiment to form the
present Princess of Wales's Royal Regiment (Queen's and
Royal Hampshires).
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Soldiers’ Departure Regretted.

The beginning of the season saw the intro-
duction of the regimental team into Surrey
football, from which they will now have to
withdraw on account of the battalion’s re-
moval to Devonport,  Their debut was quite
a successful one, more particularly in the West
Surrey League, for they are in the running
with Camberley for the championship,  Pre-
viously an unknown quantity, the si(r~ sprang
i surprise early in the winter by defeating
Woking in the Surrey Charity Shield by 3—1.
but they succumbed before Camberley in the
next round by 2—1. In the Senior Cup the
soldiers opened well by accounting for Bed-
dington Corner in the first stage, only to be
again knocked out in the second round, this
time by Tooting, on a replay.  After drawing
a bye in the first round of the Army Cup, the
Sussex men defeated the Connaught Rangers
in the next stage, had another walk-over in
the thivd chapter, and were beaten in the
fourth by Army Service Corps, Woolwich,
the ultimate winners.  Throughout the season
the soldiers have piayved a capital sporting
game, and their departure will be regretted by
the clubs with which they “have come in con-
tact. It will be appropriate if the Queen's
Regiment, who succeed the Royal Sussex ar
Inkerman Barracks, follow the latter's exam.
ple in entering into the loeal winter sport.

Figure 42. Surrey Advertiser 29 April 1914

Figure 41. Officers of 2nd Bn Royal Sussex Regiment, 1914

The 2nd Bn Royal Sussex left Inkerman
in May 1914, but after the outbreak of
the First World War, reportedly returned
for a short spell before deploying. They
landed in France in August 1914.

ROYAL SUSSEX s

The 2nd Batt. Royal
in readiness at Inkerman
were expected to leave
though no definite information is
Just after Wednesday
500 Roval Sussex Reservists
to win the regiment at Inkerman
The man, who were in

many of them wore the South African
Thoy are said to have bad & q:

n Thursday afternoon a furt .
Reservists arrived. and proceeded to jon their
comrades.

1
i

:
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|
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i
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Figure 43. West Surrey Times 8 August 1914

Sussex Road in Knaphill was named in honour of the Royal Sussex

Regiment.
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FIRST WORLD WAR

Units

The First World War saw a lot of different units pass through Inkerman
Barracks. Most seem to have stayed for about 3 months. They were all
Service Battalions (see panel below) or militia and may have been
undergoing initial training, pre-deployment training or perhaps were just
stationed somewhere not too far from the south coast, prior to being
deployed overseas.

Contrary to the popular belief that
the war would be over by Christmas
1914, Secretary of State for War,
Herbert Kitchener, predicted a long
and brutal war. He believed the
arrival in Europe of an overwhelming
force of new, well-trained and well-
led divisions would prove a decisive
blow against the Central Powers.

The New Army, often referred to as
Kitchener's Army or, disparagingly,
as Kitchener's Mob, was an (initially)
all-volunteer part of the British
Army. It originated on  the
recommendation of Kitchener to
obtain 500,000 volunteers for the

. Army.
" ' Ll\\\ I

N Those recruited into the New Army

Jl]lN YUUH BUUNTHY’S AHMY‘ were used to form complete
h battalions wunder existing British

GOD SAVE THE KING Army regiments. These new

Mapbmbursd iy purmissivn. = LONTON OPINION battalions had titles of the form "xxth
i AT (Service) Battalion”.

Figure 44. Kitchener recruiting poster

The Yorkshire Light Infantry were at Inkerman in August 1914. The 6th
(Service) Battalion was formed at Pontefract on 12 August 1914; it moved
initially to Woking and then on to Witley in November 1914.

January 1915 saw the 7th (Service) Bn King's Own Yorkshire Light
Infantry?9; 7th (Service) Bn Somersetshire Light Infantry and the 84th Field
Regt Royal Engineers all at Inkerman. The 7th Bn Yorkshire LI landed at
Boulogne on 14th July, the 7th Bn Somerset LI at the same place ten days
later.

20 The 7th (Service) Battalion was formed at Pontefract on 12 September 1914; it moved initially to
Woking and then on to Witley in February 1915.
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The 5th (Service) Bn Wiltshire Regiment were at Inkerman from February to
May 1915, before moving on to Bisley. In July the Sth Battalion set sail for
the Dardanelles, landing at Cape Helles on 17th.2!

The 4th (Service) Bn South Wales Borderers occupied Inkerman from April
until June 1915 before embarking for Gallipoli on 29t June.

;\.““!‘

YWYy

Figure 45. 4th (Service) Bn South Wales Borderers, 1915

From June to August 1915: 9th
(Service) Bn Royal Sussex
Regiment; they landed at Boulogne
on 1st September and the 7th
(Service) Bn Northants Regiment
who landed the day after.

BATHING FACILITIES

The staff captain of tho 40th Infantry Bei.
(u!e, Inkerman Barracks, wrote asking if the
.'mo:.c;l hadl any ob,-«tl-a; to soldiers bathing
in the canal. between Hermitage Bridge anid
Brookwood Stumps Bridge, before 9 4. m. and
after & po. A sentry wouid bo posted on
each flank of the bething area to warn passers.
by that bathing was taking place. —On the
recommendation of the Public Heslth Com-
mittee, the Council offered no objoction to the

Figure 46. Surrey Advertiser 12 June 1915 P"“P'l‘n

September to December 1915: 7t (Service) Bn Inniskilling Fusiliers —

landed in France in February 1916.

21 The Rifles Berkshire & Wiltshire Museum https://www.thewardrobe.org.uk/
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From December 1915 the 18th
(Service) Battalion [Bantams] Notts
& Derbyshire Regt were at Inkerman
Barracks. On 2nd April 1916, they
were absorbed by the 13th Bn, the
Yorkshire Regiment.

Figure 47. Surrey Advertiser
25 March 1916

A highiv enjovabie concort was given by
the 18th Seivice Batt., Sherwood Forosiers,
quartered nt Inkermman  Barraecks, at the
Wokiog Hippodrome. on Friday evening
last wewk, Loing attendod Ly the «flicers and
prastically  the whale of the men of the
Baitslian, Tho caneert ic oxpected 1o bo the
first of a soriem to be held (dunng the period
tho rogineent remain in the disteiet, Licut Col,
H ¥ Falis and s brother officers beiug
desirowrs of affording the men esome
pleazant relaxation from their military duties,

Tho programme, orgamssd by Capt. J. A,
Rirhy, was a great succes, and ineluded
contnbutions by several professional artists
and some o~"(\;-ll--n|"\' fine talent by officers

and men of the regimont.  Mr. Gerald K]rl'v.

At the outbreak of World War One, the height

requirement for recruits to the British Army
was Sft 3 inches (160cm), with a chest
measurement of at least 34 inches (86.36cm).

It soon became apparent that this rule
excluded many men, especially those from
industrial and coal mining areas, who were
otherwise perfectly fit to serve.

Alfred Bigland, MP for Birkenhead, wrote to
the Secretary of State for War, Lord Kitchener.
Bigland criticised what he saw as the needless
rejection of fit, healthy men and asked
Kitchener for permission to form an
undersized fighting unit. Whilst the War Office
approved of the idea, they declined to fund it.
So, Bigland decided to raise his own company
and the 15th Battalion, 1st Birkenhead, The
Cheshire Regiment was formed, composed of
men between 4 ft 10ins (140cm) and Sft 3ins

(160cm) tall. They were named Bantams WESTOFE“GlAND BANTAM '

after the small aggressive fowl which agriphrisbind S L G g

became their battalion emblem. The idea Apply NEARWHNG OFFICE.

quickly spread to other parts of the country
and more Bantam battalions were formed in the UK and Canada.

oo SOLDIERS' CONCERT. The 13th (Service) Bn the Yorkshire

Anather successiul conr I gAnis . : i i

}'Ye-, Beztrix Savage, w is ;::\.:ﬂ(a?.lr::‘ktfrlm?i: Regiment arrived at Inkerman in April
e % F'uced; Tenmn or Lthe o IV.

t'a n elay evening for Lhg officers 1916 and absorbed 18th (Se ICC) Bn

angd men of the "'.Slh ‘}'.1". Yorks Regiment
‘“»;;v ~;:”“£ ;\"‘-“ ' ;n:.}' d} -.ur;:?:l cencert Notts & Derbyshire Regt. They landed
i « NG, O3 1 l. i cds © men “ore
peable to cun admiscon. the entertaininer at Le Havre, as part of the 121st

will Te repeated on Tuesday next. ' : . ;
following took part in the programme; 3'|f.: Brigade, in June 1916 for service on

Foume oomane), Vs Dierts Jedey wones the Western Front

from the Revues)l, Miss Clond (vielin selec- '

tiens), Mis Gladyy Knox (musieal mono

logues), VMre. Louis Rnll wongs of Georrae

LM sty otel) .‘-l- l: ﬂ'!!~‘a t’mmun-('.

Miss Legley and  NMre. Rhill (voeal duets),

;!.- Dunn (oo v.ap};m’-ﬂ At the cleen. Cal Figure 48. Surrey Advertiser
Falls proposcd a hearie vote of thanks tn .

all concerncd. and the men londly cheered 15 April 1916

the company as they left the hall.
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In April 1916, the 21st (Service) Bn the Middlesex Regiment was at
Inkerman. They landed in France in June.

In August 1916, a battalion of the Highland Light Infantry was stationed at
Inkerman Barracks and, in October, a battalion of The King's Liverpool Regt.
It is not known which battalions these were.

In early 1917, the 1st Bn South African Infantry Reserve Brigade moved into
Inkerman Barracks. The barracks became the UK depot for the South
African Infantry Brigade and units of the 1st Bn, 2nd Bn and South African
Scottish Bn were based there until their eventual departure in January
1919.

In 1917, the brigade took part in the Battle of Arras and in the Third Battle
of Ypres. In March 1918, when the Germans attacked in Operation Michael,
the brigade fought a staunch defence at Gauche Wood.

WOKING.O A whist drive, arranged by Mr. A. F. Jen-

| ninge. between 30 of the patients at Inkerman
' . . . | Hospital and a similar number of ladies

On Friday evening last week Mr. Francis O8p: ) _ lies,
Payne gave a lantern lecture in the Y. M.C A, took place in the Recreation Hut on Wed

& 31 nesday evening. Prizes were provided by
:.{nl:i‘ ::diﬁ::',‘,m Barracks on * Shipbuilding the promoter, and a very enjoyable evening

Was epent.
Figure 49. Surrey Advertiser December 1917

CLUB FOR SOUTH AFRICANS. An ‘"“mth‘ P'."M.
The Women's Auxiliary Force are shortly A successiul spotls  mecting  was beld
opening at 11, The Broadway, Woking, & club Tnkerman Barracks on Saturday by the Zud
and canteen for South African troops, under Rescrve Battalion, Scath Arican Infautry.
the patronage of the High Commissioner for There was o large attendanee ol visttors, v ho

greatly enjoyed the keenly contested pro-
gramme which had been arrauged.  Daving
the proceedings selections of musie were ool

Sonth Africa and the O C. South Africans at
Inkerman Barracks, Col. Purcell I'here will

be a room for su h light l:'h‘(\\f.lnl('ill- as are meirahly played by the band sud piges of the
permitted by the Food Controller; together Beserve Brigade: and at the close Mrs. Fure
with musie, frequent entertainments, games, cell-tor wienn and for Col. 4. F. Purcetl,
magazines, writing materials, ete. A N.C.0.'s D S0, cheers wore given on the call of Major
room will also he provided. The club will he G M. Browne, MU .-ltlfit“!i"t‘l. l_l.u'__ln'iu:v_t

nnder the management of the W.AF.,, of

which the patron is Princess Arthur of Con- Figure 51. Surrey Advertiser 10 July 1918
naught and the president, Visc 'm;xt-u s8¢ French,

and the ladiea in charge will he oificers of the . .
force. Tt &= hoped to form a breneh of the The South Africans were well-liked
Torce in Woking, whose memhers will staff and respected by the local
the canteen, which will he open from 4.30 to . .

C00. Membership i= open 1o women, worktne  population. By the time they left,

by day, who can giv are » onlv.-Sa | .
advt. e e time only=%ee | gt least 38 of the South African

Figure 50. Surrey Advertiser 22 May 1918 soldiers had married local girls.>

Prison

With the outbreak of war, the Secretary of State for War set apart the
Woking military prison as a military detention barrack (i.e. for holding
prisoners of war), from 23rd August 1915.23 From that date, any soldiers
sentenced to imprisonment who would, under previous arrangements, have

22 Surrey Advertiser 23 November 1918 & 25 January 1919
23 Army Orders 325 1915
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been sent to Woking were committed to the civil prison at Wormwood

Scrubs.

One German prisoner who was held at Woking was Fahnrich?4 Ernst von
Schweinichen. He had been interned at Stobs Camp, near Hawick in the
Scottish Borders (see https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Stobs_Military Camp).

He attempted to escape and was then held at Dorchester POW Camp (where
he apparently spent most of his time in hospital). In February 1916, he was
sentenced to 9 months detention at Woking, for his attempted escape.

In July 1916, a complaint was
received from  the German
authorities about his treatment
which they said was extremely
harsh, comprising solitary
confinement and hard labour (for
which he was too ill) and, when he
fell short in this labour, his
sentence was increased. This
complaint was passed through the
US embassy in Berlin to the
Foreign Office (The United States
had not yet entered the war).2°

Despite the fact that Fahnrich
Ernst von Schweinichen had been

released on 24t June (having
earned five months remission),
the US embassy sent two
representatives to  visit  the
prison.2® Their report refuted all
of the Germans’ claims (Figure
52).

Figure 52. First page of US
Embassy visit report

|
| S,

(Germus Divisise

ariton Neuwe Tess
London, hd
Augaet
giy,
5 LS nfom ths
. taited Roking Seter Farracks eon nday
guguat 7. 381 T putrpoes, fizrstly, of 4in
viawitg Tibnri nighen sccordance
a3t Ll I TOURE 5 i the Wets Terbtals
4 Ayean Fore ffion of Iuly 16, 3¥18,
Bo. II@ B, 84258, mnd, secondly, of talking witl

f scooamodution and treatasnt

of toy Owrman Priscners of Bar veferted t0 I the
Bete Yerbalde of the Sersan Forsign 0ffice duted
Juns 15. 1S168, Mo, III b. SGO37, se "Liauts. Fasn
of the Skemztsn Artilliesy and Jobe 37 3.0.0
‘Dldoker' ®,

®e found thss vem Souweinichen Bas Leen

seit Bark ta Dorahmster on June 34, IANY, GRVIRE
Teseived flww months readsalon of Bie aentonos
fxen the Army Oounoddi. The Colanel Commaniing

the Bavracks laid 2ohewindohen’s Toverd beTnre
U9, Wizt sbpwed thut le had suffeted oo SRETe
IPiATily savere puzisbment®, snd 1o fact 03

Puntshoent st a3 spart from the uwual confinesent.

s

on,

24 Fahnrich is an officer candidate rank in the German Bundeswehr (OR-6, equivalent to Feldwebel)

25 TNA, FO 383/190, Fahnrich Ernst von Schweinichen, German subject interned at Stobs Camp:
sentenced to imprisonment in Woking Detention Barracks for attempting to escape
26 |eland H Littlefield and Francis E Brantingham
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Woking (Inkerman) Military Hospital

The north-eastern wing of Woking Female Prison, during the conversion,
had been detached from the rest of the building and converted into a
military hospital.

e’
"

The hospital is clearly marked on the - - :
1913 OS Plan (Figure 53). ; o LS y 2

The increasing number of war [ * i A ‘i .
casualties meant that there were 7 3
insufficient hospitals and - N9 .
rehabilitation facilities in the country. I A AN &

The hospital needed to expand in both Priney 1
size and range of treatments. Whilst it SRR S d :
had primarily been dealing with \ J R 1

iy o g &
D N o
™

peace-time injuries and illnesses, it , oS Koms &
now had many patients suffering from @ ‘:t: w25 & ‘;._“\
trauma, gas attacks, burns, trench- 5~ % S P Aok
foot and shock. The hospital also had o

a specialist venereal disease clinic. Figure 53. Location of hospital

resn$ £
v

$

In August 1913, an Aldershot Command tactical exercise had been carried
out for the training of RAMC units in combination with the fighting troops.
The railway from Woking to Aldershot was considered to be the railway from
railhead to the advanced base.2”

Inkerman hospital established a close relationship with the Beechcroft
Hospital in Woking. Beechcroft was a large house in Heathside Road. It
had been the home of Sir Sam Fay, when he was superintendent of the
London and South-Western Railway and was donated free of charge by him.
It was opened as a military hospital (i.e. a hospital for military patients),
staffed by the Woking Division of the British Red Cross Society, at the end of
February 1915.

At the end of March 1916, it was reported that, since January, because of
alterations going on at Inkerman Hospital, 50O operations, 29 major and 21
minor, had been carried out at Beechcroft.28

In March 1917, Surgeon-General Sir George D Bourke, Deputy-Director of
Medical Services, on behalf of the War Office, accepted a large recreation
room which had been erected by subscription, at a cost of £800, for the use
of patients at the hospital. The hut, except for the billiard table, would be
capable of seating 300 people. Lt-Col Lionel Arthur Mitchell said that, when
faced with the task of extending the hospital, he saw immediately the need

27 Journal of the Royal Army Medical Corps Vol. XXI July-December 1913
28 Surrey Advertiser 1 April 1916

33



for a day room for the patients. The provision of the hut enabled him to add
102 beds to the 204 they already had.?°

Lt Col Mitchell was posted to the front = LIEUT.-COL. MITCHELL LEAVES
in April 1917. He was replaced as / KRR )
Commanding Officer at Inkerman Hospital charge of

by Lt Col James Tidbury R.A.M.C. w%%’ﬂ",é::’ LA e

E
.
|

Figure 54. West Surrey Times 4 "t ¢

£
:
:
;
&

14 April 1918  expressing regret at his departure, and o
bope that prosperity will gttend him.

% 1:nother convoy of wounded, eon:;?n‘% of INFLUENZA EPIDEMIC IN WOKING.
cot cases and 24 silling cases, ved ab | The * Spalsh flu * has spread to Woking,
Inkerman Military Hospital on Thursday und neither high nor low have escaped ite
week. The conwoy was met st Brookwood by ravages. The military camps in the neigh-
)!n;or-Genml ter and Ldeut. Gervis, bourhood have got it . Neuwrly every
whilst a detschment of the V.A.D., in charge frmate at MM“?EUJ bas been
of Bergt. Holt, and a party of S.A.L Sliion W% W 9%, Iahorman
stretcher- bearers, under Section - Leader m‘"’m ’:-th-d mbh.. Sod Ne
Patey, were also in nitendance, The de- quarter  have had uum"':
{raining was very smartly carried out. - :ndhbbqlhh for the treatment of

fluenza cases,

Figure 55. West Surrey Times 28 June 1918

Figure 56 shows the hospital from
the air in about 1920. The windows
show it to be three stories high.

The dark hut to the hospital’s left is
presumably the recreation room,
provided by subscription, described
above.

Figure 56. Hospital c1920

Dates Officer in Command
1905-1908 Lt Col Harry Neville Thompson
1908-1909 Lt Col Robert James Geddes
1909-1911 Maj Lionel Arthur Mitchell
1911-1914 Lt Col William E Berryman
1915-1917 Lt Col Lionel Arthur Mitchell
1917- Lt Col James Tidbury

Table 2 Commanders of Woking Military Hospital

29 West Surrey Times 24 March 1917
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Y.M.C.A. Hut

From the outbreak of war, the Young Men’s Christian Association (Y.M.C.A.)
raised £1,200 daily to provide recreation huts for the soldiers. The hut
erected at Inkerman, at a cost of £1200, the 33t in the Aldershot Command,
was described as ‘the last word in Y.M.C.A. buildings’. The hut was officially
opened on 30t August 1916, by Princess Victoria of Schleswig-Holstein
(grand-daughter of Queen Victoria).30

Y-MCA (BAIRACK SQUARE) INKERMAN BARRACKS, STJOHNS, WOKING,

[

Figure 57. Y.M.C.A. recreation hut, Inkerman Barracks

P ol INTERIOR Y'M-C'A MU, (BARRACK PATH) INKERMAN BARRACKS, ST JONNS, WOKING. 8
b

-

Figure 58. Y.M.C.A. recreation hut, interior

30 Evening Mail 1 September 1916
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Y.M.C.A. huts were run by officers of the Y.M.C.A., staffed by volunteers.
Any profits made were directed towards their charitable works. At the end
of the war, the hut was presumably closed down and the building handed
over to the military.

Armistice

On Monday 11th November 1918, in Woking, news of the signing of the
Armistice was first received by the South African forces stationed at
Inkerman Barracks. The news spread through the town and was common
knowledge long before official confirmation was forthcoming.3!

31 Surrey Advertiser 16 November 1918
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INTER-WAR YEARS

SENIOR OFFICERS’ SCHOOL

From 1919 until 1924, Inkerman Barracks was the home of the Senior
Officers' School. This was a British military establishment, established in
1916 by Brigadier-General Reginald John Kentish, for the training of
Commonwealth senior officers of all services in inter-service co-operation.

The School was originally intended for senior officers of the British Army
who aspired to battalion command and to ensure that all such candidates
received suitable training. It was however taken as an affront by some
senior officers of the day, who resented the implication that they were
incapable of delivering the necessary training.

The School was originally based at North Sealbe M. ldod

Camp, Aldershot, during the First World | Those Boers: who Toss 4o S’ viink
War, but moved to Inkerman Barracks in ’
1919 where the first course was held
between 15th  October and  28th
November.

Senior Officers’ School.

The Senior Officers’ School which
was formed at Aldershot during the
war has now moved to Woking. It
was primarily intended for the iigber
traimnalof those {oung officers who
found themselves in eommand of, or
likely to command, battalions in
France. I hear that this institution
will remain as onc¢ of the iustructionsl
schools of the New Army. It will be
the finishing school for senior majors
before being selected for the eom-
mand of their ts, and the
course there will take the place of the
old tactical fitness examination which
was the nightmare of so many officers
in the days before the war, J

Figure 59. Pall Mall Gazette 1 November 1919

Figure 60. Pall Mall Gazette 7 April 1920

The 5th course, in 1921, was opened up to officers from the Royal Navy and
Royal Marines.

It was usual for a golf match to be played between the school and members
of parliament from the House of Commons.
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" 'SENIOR-OFFICERS’ SCHOOL v.
" _HOUSE OF COMMONS.

siggles were wor by the
gl‘;lool hy fire malches to {we, while tho foursomes
were taken by Lhe same side by twp matches to ail, thus ea
the day the omcc Scbool" team bm tho House” ol Com-
mons séven malches to lwoo Detall s
BEXIOR . OFFICEES’ SCHOOL, ROUSE OF oonuo'w. )
L(..-Col W. Green (I. nnd ;

H‘ - Gibbons. (1 hcle) i " Ram
ol, Jones 510 e ! Capl. R Kenncdy “reasees 0
l‘l 0]0 A. HA ﬂ'“ (1 ]

W gzlndm euum on Salurdui_::d anece npl- the Puli&
Officery

Lt. 1 S0 N AR A ST
f°°& Wi © B
Lwol WO .1. Shmnuu : u:i nmun “Waid
(hlud) Jon. ov6 b . 0 Co{ Prnnlls
LLCol. C. w. l!!m.u.....o A .es ..o l
R R _E T T '§
-CoLGmnst.«CoL Knn.l’-‘SkamudB’
Cibbons (4 and 3) ... Jobaston «iv vee enr o
H-Col. Jogs a Mij. . R, & m::g"éup:.
" eﬁaLu&" 0 e xm THen-

ans a0 b
Col. Shannon {hmod) 0 __ nesey (balved) .

Lt.Col. Bull d A 1d wd Oam..
0‘?}?. M’Lean 4°:ndl3‘1 f‘owmﬁ l‘. bre euny
ll'obll.".---.m.... 2 Toul:uuu ----- w O

ARMY SENIOR OTPICERS' SCHOOL.

It is announced thet the Senior Olicery’ School
is to ba moved from Woking to Sheerness. The
fourtecnth course a4 the school, which was to have
begn hold trom 1ith Ifobmuy to 9th May, haa
been eancelled. Tho Gfteenth and sixtcenth courses

will bo held between 23rd-May and 1588 August,
and between 23rd September and 20th December

respectively.

————

In 1924, the School was evicted from
Inkerman as accommodation was
needed for troops; it was transferred
to Sheerness, Kent.

Finally, the School moved to Erlestoke
Park in Wiltshire in 1939, where it
continued to operate until its closure
in 1961.

Today similar officer training is conducted at the Joint Services Command &

Staff College at Shrivenham.

Figure 61. Inkerman Barracks from the air, ¢.1920
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WOKING MILITARY PRISON - CLOSURE

During the inter-war years, there seems to have been a drop in the number
of prisoners committed to military prisons.

In 1922, Bodmin Naval Prison was closed and accommodation for up to 25
naval prisoners was arranged at Woking Military Prison.

A general review of military prisons was undertaken and questions asked in
Parliament. In response to a Parliamentary Question, it was stated that: in
1926, the estimated cost of the prison at Woking was £6,800 per year whilst
the average number of prisoners detained was 16, at a cost of 23s 4d [£1.17]
per prisoner per day. This was compared unfavourably with the cost of
sending a boy to Eton College.32

Woking Military Prison was closed on 1st November 1927. Thereafter,
offenders who would otherwise have been sent to Woking were committed to
the Royal Military Prison and Detention Barracks, Aldershot.

Dates Governor/Commandant
Mar 1902 - May 1904 Major Charles Cecil Daniel, Royal Scots
May 1904 — Feb 1908 Major Francis Slater Picot, Wilts

1 Mar 1908 — 4 Mar 1914 | Lieut-Colonel Charles Cecil Daniel, Royal Scots

3 Jun 1915 - 3 Jun 1918 | Bt Lt-Col Thomas Harold Mortimer Green DSO, Notts &

Derbys
-Aug 1920 Bt Lt-Col Geoffrey Arnold Sullivan DSO, Oxf & Bucks
1920-1921 Maj Arthur George Joiner
Aug 1920-1924 Bt Lt-Col Eldred Charles Halton, Loyal North Lancs

Table 3 Governors or Commandants of Woking Military Prison

32 Hansard Volume 203: debated on Tuesday 15 March 1927
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STATIONED UNITS

Irish Guards

The 1st Bn of the Irish Guards were stationed at Inkerman Barracks, upon
their return from Gibraltar, from 9th April 1924 until September the same
year, when they moved to Pirbright Camp. The battalion arrived at Woking
station from Southampton and marched to the barracks.33

Irish Guards

Founded: 1900

The Irish Guards (IG) is one of the Foot Guards regiments of
the British Army and is part of the Guards Division.

The Irish Guards were formed on 1 April 1900, by order of
Queen Victoria, to commemorate the Irishmen who fought in
the Second Boer War for the British Empire.

Daily Chronicle Photo.

Sent by Queen Alexandea, whoe instituted the costom 24 vours ago, shamrock was distributed 1o details of the Irich
Guards at Inkerman Barracks, Woking, vosterday. in commemoration of 8t Patrick’s Day, Some of the sprigs
wore used for the decorastion of the enps of maids 28 well g8 those of the military.,

Figure 62. Distribution of shamrock, 1924

Whilst the battalion was at Inkerman Barracks, a guardsman, Walter Irvine,
during the night apparently fell 40 feet to his death from an open window.34

33 Surrey Advertiser 12 April 1924
34 Surrey Advertiser 30 July 1924
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|SOLDIER’S MYSTERIOUS
‘ DEATH.

FORTY-FEET FALL AT
INKERMAN BARRACKS.

w Immwm
‘{.- it *u-‘-ipd,um.' :

An inquest svas held at the Military Hos-
pital, Inkerman Barracks, on day even-

-

Saturday meorning forty feet below a dormi-
tory window at the barracks, where his regi-
ment is stationed.—Mr. Ernest ‘Wilson was
farsman of the jury.

Lieut. E. C. FitzClarence, 1st Battalion Irish
Guards, stationed at Inkerman Barracks,
identified the body se that of Guardsman Wal-
ter Irvine, 24, who came from Belfast.
He went abroad with the battalion in 1022,

character

and was of ver g

Pte, Patrick iil said Lrvine was in the
same company as himself On Saturda
morning witness went to the wash-house ad-
joining  his own room, and found
Irvine in the passage. As far as he knew, he
was the first person to go ta the wash-house
that morning. Irvine was very po(pn.lnr. and
he retorned with the other men from Cow-
shott Camp on the Friday evening at about
4.30, being ** quite himself " st the time, He
did not knosv what time Irvine * turned in ™’
for the night. ‘As far a8 he knew, the deceased
had no quarrel with any other man,

Lee.Sergt. Patrick Burke said he was in
charge of the guard on Friday night, and saw
Irvine return ot 10,5 p.m. He was perfectly

158, by Mr, Gilbert H. ,,mi
e o= o ey
Ler mmnbo-ebod¥ was found early on

ing unusual during the night,

'l a.m. cn Saturday.

Corpl Jeremish O'Leary. in charge of de-
ceased's dorthitory, said Irvine returned shortly
before * lights out.”” There were about ten
men in the dormitory, and Irvine occupied a
corner bed near tho window. Witness saw
him get into bed, and heard nothing unusual
during the night. At Cowshott the deceased
more than once got out in the night, and had
been subject to violent fits of vemiting, Wit-
ness could not say whether this was due to
drinking." Tents al the camp were closed at
night. and Irvine would “crawl out under the
tent flaps. »

Guardsman Thomas Donaghy, who slent in
the next bed, said he saw Irvine come in at
10.10 p.m., and goto bed. Witness heard noth-

Guardsman Thomas Crawford, who occupied
an adjoining bed, gave similar evidence.

Caolonel E. W. W, Cochrane, R.LAMC,, re-
tired, said he saw the ‘body shortly after 7
t It was lying in the base-
ment, and “the man had been dead at Jeast
two hours. He twas wearing only a grey shirt,
There was no sign that he had been sick. The
#kull was smashed, and the brain lacerated.
The window near Irvine's bed had a bar across,
and opened abowut two feel. The actual open-
ing wae about ten inches. A man micht have
some difficulty in crawling through the open-
mer,

Police Sergt. J. Seed. Knephill,’ said the
hed in which Irvine slept was close to the wall.
The window was onen to its full exten!—I104in.
From the window to the ground was 40§ feet.

The Cogoner said there was no evidenes that
the deceased wanted to take his own life and
the jury returned a verdiel of *‘“ Death by
misadventure,” The foreman said the jury-
men were of the ovinion that the man might
have leaned out of the window to get fresh
aid. and slipoed through,

Arrangements wers made to convey {he body
to Treland on Monday evening for interment
at Bolfast on Tuesday,

Figure 63. Unfortunate death of Guardsman, 1924

Royal West Kent Regiment

The 2nd Bn Royal West Kent Regiment (Queen’s Own) succeeded the Irish
Guards at Inkerman Barracks. They arrived in October 1924 and departed

on 16th November 1927.

Royal West Kent Regiment

Founded: 1881

On 1 March 1961, the regiment was amalgamated with the
Buffs (Royal East Kent Regiment) to form the Queen's Own
Buffs, The Royal Kent Regiment, which was destined to be
short-lived. On 31 December 1966, the Queen's Own Buffs
was merged with the other regiments of the Home Counties
Brigade — the Queen's Royal Surrey Regiment, the Royal
Sussex Regiment and the Middlesex Regiment — to form the
Queen's Regiment.
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ALLECED ATTEMPTED
SUICIDE.

Soldier Remanded at Woking.

Pte. Wm. Edwin Sutton (22), R.ANLC..
attuched to tho 2nd Batt. Royal West Kent
Regiment, stationed at Inkerman Barracks.
was remanded for a week 2t Woking Porty
Sessions on Saturday on a charge of at-
tempted suicide.—Defendant pleaded guilty.

Sutton had appeared at an Occasional
Court earlier in the week, when - Police-
Inspector Evans .stated that on March 14th
he went to Inkerman Barracks, Knaphill,
where ho saw, an empty phial which had con-
tained morphine and sulphate. He later saw
Sutton, who appeared to be ill. He cau-
tioned Sutton, and told him he was making
inquiries about a quantity of poison avhich
had been taken'from a cupboard in the hos-
pital. Sutton replied, “I aid it.”

At Saturday’s hearing defendant was given
an excellent charactér by an r in charge
of the R.AM.C. at the barracks, — Supt.
Boshier stated Sutton had recently been mar-
jried; & misunderstanding had occurred, and
he thought it possible that that may have
had something to do with Sutton attempting
(to take his life. .

Figure 64. Surrey Advertiser
23 March 1927

Royal Warwickshire Regiment

Pte. Thomas Weatherill, M.G. Scction.
R.W. Kent Regt., Inkerman Parracks, was
fined 5«. for not having a horn on a motor
cycle, and a summonas for not having two in-
dependent brakes was dismissed,

Figure 65. Surrey Advertiser 6 April 1925

AN HONOURABLE SOLDIER.

At the Petty Sessions on Saturday, Emily
Turner, staying at 16, Arthur’s Bridge-road,

‘Woking, was granted an affiliation order for

12s. 6d. a week against Pte. T. Conelly, of

‘the Royal West Kent Regt., stationed at In=

kerman Barracks. — Defendant admitted
paternity of the child, which- was born on
May' 29th, 1924.—<When the Clerk (Mr. W.
Davies) pointed out that the Army allow-
ance d not cover thé amount of the

corder, defendant said he would ‘“make it

15 1 2

)"’ from his own money. — The Chairman
(Mr. AMfred Brown): I am very glad to hear

Figure 66. Surrey Advertiser 7 July 1926

The 1st Bn Royal Warwickshire Regiment succeeded the Royal West Kent
Regiment at Inkerman Barracks, in November 1927.

Royal Warwickshire Regiment

Founded: 1685

In February 1963, it was announced that the Queen had
approved of the regiment becoming fusiliers and adopting
the title of Royal Warwickshire Fusiliers from 1 May 1963.
As a fusilier regiment, the Royal Warwicks were entitled to
wear a coloured feather hackle in the headdress.

On 23 April 1968, the four regiments of the Fusilier Brigade
were amalgamated to become a large regiment as the Royal
Regiment of Fusiliers.

On 17th January 1931, Bernard Law Montgomery (later Field Marshall
Montgomery) was promoted to Lieut-Colonel and became Commanding

Officer of 1st Bn.35

35 London Gazette 16 January 1931
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The 1st Bn were succeeded by their FIRST SCHEDULE.
own 2nd Bn, in May 1931. The Animals referred to ¢n this Order.

. Two black buck, the property of the Officer
second Bn, under command of Lieut- commanding Second Battalion, Royal Warwick-
Colonel WAT BOle were returning shire Regiment, brought from India and to be

. ’ . landed in the Port of Bouthampton from H.M.
from a foreign tour which had Transport  Neuralia " on or before the thirty-
started in 1912. The Commander f;f:tyi:i of May, mueteen hundred and
brought with him ‘“wo black buck’ S
from India, having had the SECOND SCHEDULE.

; : A stable at Inkerman Barracks, Woking, in
ap.pl.roprlate O.rder issued Py t_he the administrative county of Burrey.
Minister of Agriculture and Fisheries _

and ensuring proper quarantine.=° Figure 67. Extract from London Gazette

The 2nd Bn remained until November 1935, when they transferred to
Tidworth, thus giving the regiment an uninterrupted presence for eight
years.

On 10t May 1935, the 2nd Bn were visited at Inkerman Barracks by the
Duke of Gloucester, who presented them with new colours. The old colours
had been borne by the battalion since its establishment 77 years earlier.
After the general salute, the battalion marched past the duke headed by
their black buck mascot.3”

Royal Welch Fusiliers

The 1st Bn Royal Welch Fusiliers succeeded the 2nd Bn Royal Warwickshire
Regiment at Inkerman Barracks on 15t November 1935.

Royal Welch Fusiliers

Founded: 1689

The Royal Welch Fusiliers was a line infantry regiment of the
British Army, and part of the Prince of Wales's Division. In
1702, it was designated a fusilier regiment and became the
Welch Regiment of Fusiliers; the prefix "Royal" was added in
1713, then confirmed in 1714 when George I named it the
Prince of Wales's Own Royal Regiment of Welsh Fusiliers.

One of the few regiments to retain its original title, in March
2006 the Royal Welch Fusiliers was amalgamated with the
Royal Regiment of Wales (RRW) and became 1st Battalion,
Royal Welsh, with RRW as the 2nd Battalion.

The Royal Welch Fusiliers, who are This unit became a machine gun
mm “mm ;{:et?,:,!. battalion. In October 1937, it moved
conversion to machine gun units next winter. o Dettingen Barracks at Deepcut.

Figure 68. Surrey Advertiser December 1935

36 | ondon Gazette 31 March 1931
37 Surrey Advertiser 11 May 1935
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Durham Light Infantry

The 2nd Bn Durham Light Infantry succeeded the 1st Bn Royal Welch
Fusiliers at Inkerman Barracks in October 1937.

Durham Light Infantry

Founded: 1881

The Durham Light Infantry (DLI) was a light infantry regiment
of the British Army. It was formed by the amalgamation of the
68th (Durham) Regiment of Foot (Light Infantry) and the
106th Regiment of Foot (Bombay Light Infantry) along with
the Militia and Volunteers of County Durham.

In 1968, the regiment was amalgamated with the Somerset
and Cornwall Light Infantry, the King's Own Yorkshire Light
Infantry and the King's Shropshire Light Infantry to form The
Light Infantry.

The Light Infantry had a somewhat troubled relationship with the local
population. There were numerous soldiers brought before the magistrates,

usually for theft.

INKERMAN BARRACKS

The 2nd Battalion of the Durham Light
Infantry, now stationed at Inkerman Bar-
racks, Woking, were their first
Christmas fn England for 19 years. The
battalion is 780 strong, and all but 40 were
on leave. Their Christmas leave followed a
month’s disembarkation leave. Turkeys
and Christmas puddings were provided for
Christmas Day dinner at the barracks, and
|there was a free issue of beer and cigar-
ettes. When the battalion Is at strength
again & Christmas tree event will be held,
|when all the children are Invited to a

| party.
Figure 69. Surrey Advertiser 1 Jan 1938

HANDED BACK TO MILITARY
AUTHORITIES

When Privates Sidney, Appleby, John
Banetl and Peter Foster, f the Durhien
Light Infantry, Inkerman Barracks, Wok-
ing, were charged at Woking Pollce Court
on Saturday with taking snd driving nway
& car without the owners consent at By-!
fleet on January 20th, Supt, J. H. White
asked that the men shotld be handod back
o the military authorities to be dealt with
by mitlivary law This wis a recommiendi.
tlon Trom the genernl purposes commiittee
of the Quarter Sesslons—The application.
which was supported by an officer of the
Durham Light Infantry, was granted,

Figure 70. Surrey Advertiser 25 Jan 1939
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Figure 72. Surrey Advertiser 11 Feb 1939

Figure 73. Surrey Advertiser 11 Feb 1939

The 2rd Bn were mobilised and moved
to France on 30th September 1939.

Figure 74. Surrey Advertiser 29 July 1939

Figure 71. Surrey Advertiser 11 Feb 1939
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RAMC Record and Pay Office

The Royal Army Medical Corps (RAMC) Record and Pay Office, previously in
Oriental Road, Woking, moved into Inkerman Barracks in October 1926.
They worked from there at least until the outbreak of the Second World War.

Either during the war or immediately after it, the Record and Pay Office
seems to have been (most likely) absorbed into the RAMC Depot HQ. By
1947, there is no mention of it as a separate entity. Reports from the office
in the RAMC Depot Magazine, which were a regular feature before the war,
no longer appear.
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SECOND WORLD WAR

Spider Huts

In July 1939, huts were under construction at Inkerman Barracks to
provide accommodation for Militiamen, who were expected to arrive in
batches of 150. They were intended to be available by mid-September, when
the first troops were expected to arrive (see Figure 74).38
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Figure 75. ‘Spider’ huts

The huts were grouped into sixes,
connected by corridors to a central
ablutions block. Because of this layout
the huts became known as ‘spider’ huts.

Figure 77. ‘Spider’ hut layout

Unlike the barrack blocks which
were still heated with coal fires,
the huts were converted to
central heating in about 1960.

Many of these huts were
- ®  °  destroyed in 1964 when a fire
s ) ~ ripped through them.

e d s 4 e S~ \!"
ot . oty

Figure 76. Barrack hut fire, 1964

38 Surrey Advertiser 29 July 1939
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Canadian Forces

In the early days of the Second World War, the UK’s Expeditionary Army was
sent to France. Empire troops, most notably Canadian, were brought to
England to provide defence of the homeland.

In 1940, the 1st Canadian Division Royal Canadian Army Service Corps
(RCASC) were stationed at Inkerman Barracks.

On Monday, 30th September 1940, at about 17:00, a British Hawker
Hurricane aircraft was shot down; the pilot bailed out and the aircraft
crashed onto Inkerman Barracks. It was reported that 1 soldier was killed
and 24 wounded, all of No. 2 Training Battalion RASC.39

An anti-aircraft gun was sited in the field adjacent to Hermitage Road (where
the Winston Churchill Secondary School was later built).40

Figure 78

AT STT AT SRty

Figure 79. Surrey Advertiser 31 Jan 1942

Figure 80. Surrey Advertiser 15 May 1943

In 1944, Inkerman was home to 1 Canadian Armoured Corps Reinforcement
Unit.

From May 1945 until 15t February 1946, Inkerman Barracks was No. 2
Repatriation Depot, for the Canadian Infantry Corps.

39 SHC, 6198/3/206, Woking report centre: Register of incidents
40 SHC, 6925/2, Typescript memoirs of World War II, by Mrs B Underwood, née Shapland
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Y.M.C.A. Hut

The Young Men’s Christian Association (Y.M.C.A.), in Spring 1940, provided
a new recreational hut for the use of men of the Forces (mainly Canadians),
sited on the northern edge of St John’s Lye. The hut, which cost £2,500,
was opened on 4th May 1940 by HRH Princess Helena Victoria of Schleswig-
Holstein, after whom the hut was to be named (the same Princess Victoria
who, in 1916, had previously opened the earlier Y.M.C.A. hut in Barrack
Path).4!

The main hall, which measured 100ft by 30ft, contained a stage with full
lighting. There was provision for billiards and table-tennis and a ‘well-
equipped lounge’. It also had six baths.*?2 The hut had four full-time staff
including the manager, a member of the Y.M.C.A. Canadian branch, plus 60
volunteer part-time employees.

After the war, it was decided that St John’s should have a memorial,
independent of anything that Woking provided. It was also decided that this
memorial should be a village hall. One of the options suggested was that
the village purchase the Y.M.C.A. hut. This is the option that was
eventually chosen.

41 Surrey Advertiser 8 May 1940
42 Surrey Advertiser 4 May 1940
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POST WAR

CORPS OF ROYAL MILITARY POLICE 1947-64

The Royal Military Police (RMP) is the corps of the British Army responsible
for the policing of army service personnel, and for providing a military police
presence both in the UK and while service personnel are deployed overseas
on operations and exercises.

The RMP's origins can be traced back to the 13th century but it was not
until 1877 that a regular corps of military police was formed with the
creation of the Military Mounted Police, which was followed by the Military
Foot Police in 1885. Although technically two independent corps, they
effectively functioned as a single organisation.

Royal Military Police

o Founded: 1926

On 27 February 1926 the Corps of Military Police was
formed by merging the Military Mounted Police and the
Military Foot Police.

In November 1946, King George VI granted the 'Royal' prefix
to the Corps of Military Police in recognition of its

' A oY 4 outstanding record in two World Wars and the Corps became
\5_ \ S o known as The Corps of Royal Military Police, though
@“‘;\U\/—,ﬁ é‘g\.\!& abbreviated to Royal Military Police (RMP).

On 6 April 1992, the RMP amalgamated into the
Adjutant General's Corps (AGC), under whose overall command they form part of the
AGC's Provost Branch alongside the also pre-existent Military Provost Staff Corps and the
later-formed Military Provost Guard Service. Although they lost status as an independent
corps, they were permitted to retain the Royal Military Police title and cap badge.

On 28 November 1946, King George VI granted the 'Royal' prefix to the
Corps of Royal Military Police (RMP) by Army Order 167 in recognition of its
outstanding wartime record.

In 1947, the RMP were given Inkerman Barracks as their future Depot and
Training Centre (including a Special Investigation Branch training school).
The RMP moved from nearby Mytchett Camp in September that year.

A new set of TA Companies were established for the RMP in 1947. The
Supplementary Reserve was also restarted in 1949 and renamed as the
Army Emergency Reserve (AER) in 1951. Numerous RMP AER units were
raised, administered by HQ RMP AER at Inkerman Barracks; these included
Army and Corps Provost Companies and Vulnerable Points Companies as
well as SIB Sections. The RMP AER recruited heavily from ex-Regular and
National Service RMP personnel, as well as the civilian Police and
Automobile Association. The annual training commitment of the AER units
was lower than that of the TA, with personnel only required to attend one
15-day camp each year, with no weekly or monthly continuation training.
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The original barrack dining rooms (see Figure 13) were converted into
classrooms.

During National Service (see page 55), recruits came for 16 weeks’ training,
with a new intake of 100 every four weeks. Thus 400 recruits were
undergoing training at any one time.

Figure 81. Hand-drawn plan, 1950s

Figure 82. Assault course
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Figure 83 Royal Mlhtary Police passing out parade, February 1953
Photo: Tony Pearce

The RMP installed a mahogany -
memorial arch into the entrance i

archway of the barracks. It :
commemorates the service of the g
RMP in all theatres of the Second
World War. It has a semi-circular
top with the Royal Military Police
crest attached, flanked by the years
1939 and 1945. The pillars are
carved with the names of the
campaigns in which Military Police
and Provost Officers served and died
in World War II.

The arch was moved to Roussillon
Barracks in Chichester in 1980. A
further move brought it to the Royal
Military Police Church at the
Defence School of Policing and
Guarding (DSPG), Southwick Park,
where it now stands.

Figure 84. RMP memorial arch

52



N AR m‘

Figure 85. Royal Military Police Band, 1960s

Chapel

In March 1958, the Bishop of Guildford, under the powers of the 1949
Marriage Act, granted a Licence for the ‘publication of cited the banns of
marriage and the solemnization of marriages’ in the Military Chapel known
as ‘the Royal Military Provost Corps Chapel’ Inkerman Barracks.*3

The first marriage in the chapel, took place in November 1958 between Miss
Patricia A Holmes and Corporal A C Poyner.#* However Banns were read
from April that year.

PaGy 1 The Yeur 105§

No. 1 Banns of Marriage e
Anrwowy. Heprey LeTisviee  (B) of. This  Frxiss

AND
Jeawne Pyyivs  Morrar o of .im# IWnesw  sr ST Maxy SANDeastenh Sexccy

WERE PUBLISHED AS FOLLOWS

1t Time, Swunday. Arse 27 ™ [95E . by :‘."}M,“ }/%-‘“‘ o
N - '. ..
2nd Tima, Sunday MRy “# 1758 . py. A"u{ym),, Hoplas  cr

o 5 / & -
3d Time, Swnday PMAY__ 1/ 195F. by Atags Hiplas  F

Figure 86. First entry in the Register of Banns of Marriage

The chapel had been used for baptisms since 1892. Between October 1892
and September 1962 over 550 baptisms took place.*>

43 London Gazette 28 March 1958
44 Surrey Advertiser 26 November 1958
45 TNA, WO 156/452, Baptism Register Garrison Chapel, Inkerman Barracks, Woking, Surrey
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Figure 87. Eligibility to marry in a Garrison church

After the departure of the RMP Corps, the licence was revoked on 19t June
1967.46

The RMP left Inkerman Barracks in early 1964, for their new home at
Roussillon Barracks, Chichester. It is reported that they marched there.*”
It is more likely that they marched to Woking station and then from
Chichester station to the new barracks.

46 London Gazette 30 June 1967
47 http://lwww.royalsussex.org.uk/RSLHG_Roussillon_Barracks.htm
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DEPOTS

National Service

National Service from 1947 to 1963 was a continuation of what had been
known as the “Duration of the Present Emergency Act of Parliament” - which
covered war time conscription from 1939 - and was regularised by The
National Service Act of 18th July 1947. From 1st January 1949, healthy
males 17 to 21 years old were required to serve in the armed forces for 18
months, and remain on the reserve list for four years. They could be
recalled to their units for up to 20 days on no more than three occasions
during these four years.

In October 1950, in response to the British involvement in the Korean War,
the service period was extended to two years; in compensation, the reserve
period was reduced by six months.

National Service ended gradually from 1957.48 It was decided that those
born on or after 1st October 1939 would not be required, but conscription
continued for those born earlier whose call-up had been delayed for any
reason. In November 1960 the last conscripted men entered service, as call-
ups formally ended on 31st December 1960, and the last conscripted
servicemen left the armed forces in May 1963.

Civilian Clothing Depot

At the end of the Second World War, there were approximately five million
service-members in the British Armed Forces. The demobilisation and
reassimilation of this vast force back into civilian life was one of the first and
greatest challenges facing the postwar British government.

British servicemen and women returned to civilian life by passing through a
demobilisation centre. Personnel returning to this country from abroad for
the purpose of release passed first through a disembarkation unit; they then
went on to a dispersal unit. There were six disembarkation camps and nine
dispersal units throughout the UK.

48 Ministerial statement reported in The Times, 18 April 1957
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Part of the process of demobilisation was the MEN'’S WEAR “SHOP‘—'WIT{

issue of a set of civilian clothing. No. 10 Civilian QUICK SERVICE.
Clothing Depot was established at Inkerman Pomp
Barracks in January 1946. It was located within BB 0wy wmm s
the old military prison building. socks ‘of all 3‘.‘:"&9&“:'. weil
| the visitie sgn] b the thoumide of
“ " soldiers who the No, 10
TEA FOR THE “DEMOBS | Givilan Clouting ”w!mﬁ- nxersan
¥ “CIVYY smog WAT O ?um-looked-lm Civvy m
of khaki-clad men, each with Proms Do s Chith sambes ob'the
kit bag and the now now well-known| this week, Tecetyes pen rope
box of “civvies,” are a familiar sight in/| and the Middie East they have
the neighbourhood of Woking station,| mu:.umumn-
where they are to be found at all it a m"w
hours clustered round a YM.C.A, can-| the depot now "'ﬁ/
teen and consuming obviously wel-} the one where overcoats can be
come cups of tea, ob H WMMm
This is the result of the latest ser- L
rico that the YM.CA. is offering the oo 15 Das 4 e e S et e
Serviceman. These men Ve come and 160ft. of counters for shirts;
from the Middle gnd Far East for re-| ?.::,mg"“‘&‘m“é
lu..nndmbmuchtwwml P gm'nn:cm
where they have been issued with thelr| %nm‘
civillan outfits,. Outside the down mom%mm
e sl i, T which] B pemd | o, e et
can
they are offered a cup of tea, & bun, mhmag.:ui' v
a bar of chocolate and s packet of on:annﬁr’yuh.whn‘h le
mtaﬂnmm‘o;& m'mm“ hmmw
for the of be handled in & 10-hr, day.
mﬂh&. t:dl > of 200 m'; aovu!e: n:. and sizes of
an average are'the nﬁn
messages are sent off each day. A . %’gg
canteen is n the charge of Mra. civilian sult, but the stelf had & shock
Dalziel, & member M.CA. on one occasion when & man @ft.
1031n, tall ted himself, He
permanast el I the Woking s, S
Saturdays the service is trans- wn:nmon-mué-&o-:‘q:
where ”l(rmlﬂu n:“:’n Woking, goo\mo.ot mmmm
Wmmmmn merits of blue serge and grey flannel
s T s e e
Figure 88. Surrey Advertiser 12 January 1946 |selected mm convenience in
carrying, many 'a was balanced
By 1947, about 4.3 milli d had  |-cap GB As they watted for trans:
y , about 4.3 million men and women ha gl B Senn-
returned to civilian life. The disembarkation CHL: Ml hentu iy i S SRR
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With the continuance of National Service
however the process was still required. By the
1950s, all demobilisation was conducted
through Aldershot and No. 10 Civilian Clothing
Depot survived until the end of National Service
in May 1963.
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Command Ordnance Depot

The Royal Army Ordnance Corps’ Command Ordnance Depot Aldershot was
established in c.1955. It is believed that this was the depot based in the
former military prison building at Inkerman Barracks.4°

Royal Army Ordnance Corps

The Royal Army Ordnance Corps (RAOC) was a corps of the
British Army. In 1918, it was both a supply and repair
corps. In the supply area it had responsibility for weapons,
armoured vehicles and other military equipment,
ammunition and clothing and certain minor functions such
as laundry, mobile baths and photography. The RAOC was
also responsible for a major element of the repair of Army
equipment. In 1942 the latter function was transferred to
the Royal Electrical and Mechanical Engineers (REME) and
the vehicle storage and spares responsibilities of the Royal
Army Service Corps were in turn passed over to the RAOC.

The RAOC retained repair responsibilities for ammunition, clothing and certain ranges of
general stores. In 1964, the McLeod Reorganisation of Army Logistics resulted in the
RAOC absorbing petroleum, rations and accommodation stores functions from the as well
as the Army Fire Service, barrack services, sponsorship of NAAFI (EFI) and the
management of staff clerks from the same Corps. On S April 1993, the RAOC was one of
the corps that amalgamated to form The Royal Logistic Corps (RLC).

212 B Vehicle Sub Depot, part of 2 Vehicle Group, was at Inkerman from
1951 to 1957.

In response to a Parliamentary °
Question on 29 November 1961, it Guards ceremon.al

was stated in the House of Commons uniforms fo]' Towel‘

that Command Ordnance Depot
Ceremonial uniforms belonging

Aldershot would become a sub-depot to the Household Cavalry and the
of Thatcham by 1st April, 1964. Brigade of Guards are to be trans-
ferred from the Boutht;m. Com-
nance Depot erma
The depot at Inkerman was closed in mﬁcg dwogf;‘ to the '?‘o'er
1966. London, next year.

The store at Inkerman Bar-
racks is being converted into lwe

Figure 90. Coventry Evening Telegraph ing @ it

18 October 1965

49 SHC, 7115/12/26, Correspondence, papers and plans relating to proposed use of the chapel at
Inkerman Barracks [plan Dwg 27/56]
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GLOBE CINEMA

The Army Kinematograph Service (AKS) was established during the Second
World War, by the British government, in August 1941, to meet the
increasing training and recreational needs of the British Army. The films
produced covered a broad range of topics and were delivered in a wide
variety of styles; from straightforward technical films on a subject such as a
6 pounder gun through to specialised medical films, "careless talk", street
fighting, post-war jobs, food in the mess, and problems faced by new
recruits.

Post-war the AKS went through several name and organisational changes: in
1946 it became the Army Kinema Corporation (AKC) - retaining the, by then,
archaic spelling of Kinema to differentiate it from the Army Catering Corps
(ACC).

In 1954, the AKC built a cinema at Inkerman Barracks — the first to be built
entirely at the corporation’s expense. It was incorporated into and extended
an existing ‘Romney™° hanger, which the AKC leased from the War
Department, to the south-east of the camp, close to Barrack Path.>! The
cinema had 350 seats and was called the Globe.

Figure 91. ‘Romney’ hut

On Monday January 15th 1955 the
Globe held a Gala Opening, with a
world premiere of the comedy
“Where There’s a Will’, starring
George Cole>2. George Cole along
with other members of the cast,
Leslie Dwyer and Ann Hanslip,
made personal appearances.

Figure 92. Gala Opening programme

50 The Romney hut was a prefabricated hut developed during the second world war to supplement

and replace the WWI Nissen huts

51 SHC, 8789/54/77, Additions to existing hanger to form cinema at Inkerman barracks

52 Better known for his role in the St Trinians films and, more famously, as Arthur Daley in tv's Minder
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Figure 93. Cinema ground floor layout

It is presumed that the cinema continued operating up until the departure
of the RMP in 1964.

GHOSTS

Because of the former use of the barracks as a prison, there were and are
stories of ghosts. The most persistent was the ‘phantom white woman’ who
haunted the barracks. Unfortunately, for the romantics, it seems that
people have got their history twisted along the way. Surely if she was the
ghost of a former prisoner, she would have haunted the female prison, later
the military prison, across the road?

The clock tower was reported to be haunted as were some of the married
quarters. Even in the last twenty years, people living in the former married
quarters have reported experiencing ‘a presence’.
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OFFICERS’ & MARRIED QUARTERS

OFFICERS’ QUARTERS

Senior Officers

Senior Officers were allocated specific accommodation, usually detached
houses (see Figure 13, page 12).

Warrant Officers 1st Class (WOI) were also allocated specific accommodation.
These were four semi-detached houses. The 1907 survey shows these as
numbered 3-6. Street directories and electoral rolls list six Warrant Officer
houses. From 1907, Married Quarters numbers 59 & 60 (two of the
Warrant Officer 2nd Class houses) were never shown as occupied. It is likely
that these were redesignated as accommodation for WO Is and numbered 1
& 2.

Junior Officers

Single officers and unaccompanied married officers would probably live in
the Officers’ Mess. Accompanied married officers would either be allocated
married officers’ quarters or rent a house in the neighbourhood.

In the area bounded by Barrack Path, Inkerman Road, Hermitage Road and
Rolica Road, were a number of detached houses. These were probably all
officers’ accommodation. The house at the corner of Rolica Road and
Barrack Path was single officer’s accommodation.>3

Five houses (designated ‘A’ House, B’ House, ‘C’ House, ‘D’ House & ‘E’
House) seem to have been multiple-occupancy buildings used as additional
accommodation for the Officers’ Mess.

Occasionally, and particularly after the second world war, there was less
than full take-up of officers’ quarters. In these circumstances,
accommodation could be allocated to other eligible officers within the area.
Following the RMP’s departure, almost all of the accommodation became
available. In May 1967, Brigadier Philip K Rooke returned from Germany to
take up post as Deputy Director (Military) of the Defence Operational
Analysis Establishment in West Byfleet. He moved into Peninsular House.

MARRIED SERVICE QUARTERS

On the north-west side of Raglan Road was a terrace of ten houses providing
accommodation for WO Is (although it is likely that two were designated for
WO Is, as mentioned above). Next there was a terrace of ten houses for
senior non-commissioned officers (SNCOs). This was matched by a further
terrace of ten directly opposite. There followed two terraces each of four
houses, also for SNCOs.

53 SHC, 6788/roll33, Site and ground floor plan of Inkerman Barracks, Woking (1907)
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Figure 94. Plans of WO 2 married quarters

A terrace of thirty houses stretched along the north-east side of Barrack
Path, west of the junction with Raglan Road. These were for married Junior
NCOs. Initially there were only twelve houses; a plan for an additional eight,
following the building of the female prison is shown in Figure 95. All thirty
had been constructed by the time of the 1871 Ordnance Survey plan.

Figure 95. Plan for
additional eight junior NCO
married quarters




A ground-floor plan for a pair of junior NCO married quarters is shown in
Figure 96. They were a simple 2-up, 2-down construction with external
pantry and W.C. to the rear.

Figure 96. Ground-floor plan: junior NCO married quarters

With the typical two-year rotation of units, turnover of occupants of the
married quarters was high. Some families moved from one married quarter
to another, and occasionally to a third. Sometimes this was due to a soldier
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being promoted and thus entitled to a better class of accommodation. An
extreme example is that of William Henry Hart: William was a civilian
storeman employed by the Barrack Department of the Army Service Corps,
starting sometime during the first world war. He occupied MQ 62 from at
least 1918 until 1919. He then moved to MQ 45 (1920-22), MQ 61 (1923-
26), MQ 69 (1927-31), MQ 51 (1933-34), MQ 31(1935-38), MQ 30 (1938-39),
and finally back to MQ 31(1945-47).5%

The married quarters for junior NCOs, that for senior NCOs on the north-
west side of Raglan Road and that for Warrant Officers 24 Class (WO II) are
all that remain of the barracks today.

Figure 97. Raglan Road, previously senior NCO quarters

54 SHC, CC802/43/4, Surrey Electoral Registers; Woking street directories
63



DEPARTURE AND REDEVELOPMENT

By 1960, it was reasonably common knowledge that (as part of an 8-year
plan for Aldershot District) the military intended to close Inkerman
Barracks.>> It was assumed that, if this was the case, then substantial
development would take place on the land.

Figure 98. Extent of Military-owned Land, 1934 OS Map

The War Department had a shortage of quarters for married servicemen
working in the surrounding area. They planned to retain some of the land
and build an additional 200 married officers’ quarters. It was estimated
that, in consequence, the population in the St John’s parish might rise by
about 1,000. The church entered into negotiations to take over and use the
Inkerman chapel to provide pastoral care.

55 Woking News & Mail 26 February 1960
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Eventually it made more sense for the Ministry of Defence®® to sell all of the
land at Inkerman Barracks (including the existing married quarters) and
build additional accommodation at Pirbright Camp.

Figure 99. Letter concerning future of Military Chapel

5% The Ministry of Defence was founded on 1st April 1964, by the amalgamation of the War
Department with the Admiralty and the Air Ministry
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Departure

No. 10 Civilian Clothing Depot closed in 1963, the Southern Command
Ordnance Depot in 1966. The Corps of Royal Military Police, departed
Inkerman Barracks in 1964.

Following the departure of the RMP, a small guard force was posted there to
look after the barracks, whilst negotiations took place for the sale and
transfer of the land, for development. This seems to have been taken from
the Guards battalion stationed at nearby Pirbright Camp. From 1968 to
1970, this force was provided by the Welsh Guards.

Inkerman Barracks was finally closed in 1970 when the land was sold and
transferred to Woking Council.

ATC HQ

In 1974, there were plans to erect
a new headquarters building for
No. 1349 (Woking) Squadron, Air
Training Corps. This was to be
situated between the former site of
the Officers’ Mess and Hermitage
Road (Figure 100).

This HQ was never built and the
squadron remained in their
premises at Westfield Avenue.5”

Figure 100. Proposed site for ATC HQ

Knaphill Secondary School

By 1960, the increasing population in the Knaphill area meant that the
Knaphill School, situated on the High Street, near the Garibaldi public
house, was hopelessly inadequate. Plans were drawn up for a new
secondary school on a different site, allowing the existing buildings to be
refurbished for an enlarged Infants and Juniors school.

Raglan Road was the main road running SW-NE, bisecting the military
camp. It then continued south from Barrack Path, curving round to meet
Hermitage Road.

The War Department offered that land to the south of Barrack Path and east
of Raglan Road (some 22 acres) to Surrey County Council, as a site for the
new school.>8

571349 Squadron are currently based in the Hoe Valley Community Building off of Kingfield Road
58 Hansard Volume 775: debated on Wednesday 18 December 1968
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In August 1963, the plans for the new school were approved, subject to the
retention of all trees growing on the site.>®
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Figure 101. Site of new Knaphill Secondary School

Work commenced in mid-1965. Cost was estimated at £438,000 and the
school was expected to be completed for the start of the 1966/67 school
year. ‘Minor delays’ meant that the first 570 pupils arrived one term late, in
January 1967.

On several occasions, after the
school was opened, a bomb-disposal
team had to be summoned when
suspicious objects were discovered
in the grounds. The sound of a
controlled explosion indicated a
return to normality — until the next
time.

Figure 102. Pupils posing by UXO6° truck

“W—

Until 1979, the pupils used part of the military training area as a cross-
country running course.

St John’s Primary School

St John’s Primary School was originally sited in St John’s Hill Road, near
the church. The school moved, in about 1920, to the lower end of Barrack

59 Surrey Advertiser 24 August 1963
60 UXO = Unexploded Ordnance
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Path (now the Cranstock Activity Centre®!). By 1960, the increasing
population meant another move.

The Ministry of Defence sold the area of land bounded by Inkerman Road,
Hermitage Road, Rolica (now Raglan) Road and Barrack Path. The Officers’
Mess and other officer accommodation in this area was demolished. The 3-
acre plot at the northern end of this area was sold to Surrey County Council
(Figure 104). The rest of the area became Site 5 in the housing development
plans.

The Infants or First school was the first to be completed, opening in about
1972, whilst the Juniors (what is now referred to as Middle school) remained
in Barrack Path. The Middle School opened in Victoria Road in about 1976.

Thus in the space of just a few years, St John’s Primary School had moved
to Knaphill, whilst Knaphill Secondary School had moved to St John’s.

New Housing

The land sold to Woking Council for housing development was divided into a
number of sites (Figure 104).

Sites 3 and 5 were planned to be Without Reserve

the first to be developed. The NaprHILL, WOKING,
bu'lldlngs here (the old Men’s SURREY.

Prison, late Barracks and the

Officers” Mess & houses) were INKERMAN BARRACKS
demolished almost immediately MESSRS.

after the purchase. Whilst the RICHARD J. STEEL
barracks building was being are Instructed to sell by Public
demolished, the local fire brigade Auction, :-’805};9 8 s oo
used it for training. MONDAY. 5th APRIL, 1966

at 2.30 S.m.
32 STEEL AND TIMBE
SECTIONAL BUILDINGS
7 NISSEN HUTS

AND
QUANTITY S/H BUILDING
MATERIALS

gatalloguea ht Crrtec; cﬁ lﬂ!]te
Fi 103. Mi i uctioneers, The Cattle ar ‘
igure 103 lddles;’gc}?lmlrgglg Sputhall, Middiesex. Telephone:

pr1 SOUthall 1611 and 6970. N

61 Aimed at disabled people, autistic people, those with complex needs, older people and those with
other support needs
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Figure 104. Development sites

During the development of Site 3, William Russell Court was built on the
site of the 100,000 gallon water tank (see page 11). It is thought that the
tank was too difficult/costly to remove or fill in%? and was just left there.

62 100,000 gallons is the equivalent of over 450 cubic meters
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Figure 105. Demolition of Barrack buildings
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FURTHER PICTURES

Figure 106. Watch-tower from across the square Figure 107. View from the air c1950s

Figure 109. Officers’ Mess

INKERMAN BARRACKS. PrinCIARGENTRANCE
Figure 108. Main entrance c1900
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Figure 111. Barracks from the South-east
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Figure 112. Rolica Road & sports field Figure 113. Barracks from the South
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Figure 114. View West from watch-tower 1964

Figure 115. View South from watch-tower 1964
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Figure 116. View North-west from watch-tower 1964 Figure 117. View South-east from watch-tower 1964
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TIMELINE

Male
Invalid
Prison

Women's
Prison

Closed

Male
Invalid
Prison

Women's
Prison

WWwI WW1I Korea

Figure 118. Time-line of Inkerman Barracks
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